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NATIONAL SQOCIAL SECURITY FUND
REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2013

The directors submit their report together with the audited financial statements for the year
ended 30 June 2013 which disclose the state of affairs of the National Social Security Fund
(‘the Fund), in accordance with section 32 (Cap. 222) of NSSF Act.

1. Principal activities

The principal activity of the Fund is to collect contributions from members and invest
in a professional manner to eamn a good return to meet the benefit obligations to its
members. The Fund is financed by the employees’ and employers’ contributions.
The total contribution is 15% of the employees’ gross salary, of which 16% is paid
by the employer and 5% is paid by the emplovee.

2. Results from operations
The results of the Fund for the year.ended 30 June 2013 are setouton page 7.

3. Interest to members

Interest is computed based on the opening balances of the members' funds less
benefit paid during the year. The rate used during the year ended 30 June 2013 was
11% (2012: 10%).

4, Reserves and accumulated members’ fund
The reserves of the Fund and the accumulated members’ fund are set out on page
9.

5. Unallocated members’ funds

These are collections received from employers that have not yet been allocated to
individual member accounts due to missing details of the members. Management
has put in place a mechanism to continttously follow up these missing details from
employers in arder to update the individual member accounis.

6. Directors

The directors who held office during the year and to the date of this report are set
outon page 1.

7. Auditors

In accordance with Section 32 (2) of the NSSF Act {Cap 222) Laws of Uganda, the
financial statements shall be audited once every year by the Auditor General or an
auditor appointed by him to act on his behalf. For the year ended 30 June 2013, M/s
Ernst & Young Certified Public Accountants were appointed fo act on behalf of the
Auditor General.

8. Approval of the financial statements

T:% financial statements were approved at the meeting of the directors held
on:>.), Ir8eembin2013.

By order of the board,
A J!

Mark Obia
Ag. Corporation Secretary




NATIONAL SOCIAL SECURITY FUND .
STATEMENT OF DIRECTGRS’ RESPONSIBILITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 20 JUNE 2013

The Ugandan Nationaf Social Security Fund Act (Cap 222) requires the directors of the Fund

to prepare finandal statements for each financial year, which give a true and fair view of the
state of financial affairs of the Fund as at the end of the financial year and its operating
results for that year. It also requires the directors to ensure that the Fund keeps proper
accounting records, which disclose with reasonable accuracy, at any time, the financial
position of the Fund. They are also responsible for safeguarding the assets of the Fund.

The directors are ultimately responsible for the internal control of the Eund. The directors
delegate the responsibility for the intemal control to management. Standards and systems
of internal control are designed and implemented by management to provide reasonable
assurance as to the integrity and reliability of the finandal statements and to adeguately
safeguard, verify and maintain accountability of the Fund's assets. Appropriate accounting

policies supported by reasonable and prudent judgments and estimates, are applied on a

consistent basis and using the going concern basis. These systems and controls include
proper delegation of responsibilities within a clearly defined framework, effective accounting
procedures and adequate segregaticn of duties,

The directors accept responsibility for the financial statements which have been prepared
using appropriate accounting policies supported by reasonable and prudent judgments and
estimates, in conformity with Intemnational Financial Reporting Standards and in the manner
required by the Ugandan National Social Security Fund Act (Cap 222). The directors are of
the opinion that the finandal statements give a true and falr view of the state of the
financial affairs and the results for the year ended 30 June 2013, The directors further
accept responsibility for the maintenance of accounting records that may be relied upen in
the preparation of financial statements, as well as adequate systems of internal financial
control,

The pension sector Is currently undergoing policy reforms as indicated in Note 1 to the
financial statements. Despite these policy reforms, nothing has come to the attention of the
directors to indicate that the Fund will not remain a going concemn for at least twelve
months from the date of this statement.

The financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on @ 2 esembe. 2013
and signed on its behalf by: '

Mr. Ivan Kyayonka el

Chairman

Mr. Richard Byarugaba 0

Managing Director : :

Mrs. Sarah Walusimbi . M
Director '

Mr, Mark Obia _ ’:(\Q @_.
Ag. Corporation Secretary
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NATIONAL SOCIAL SECURITY FUND

REPORT AND OPINION OF THE AUDITOR GENERAL TO PARLTAMENT
FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED 30™ JUNE 2013

THE RT. HON, SPEAKER OF PARLIAMENT

* I have audited the financial statements of the Natsonal Social Security Fund (NSSF)
which comprise of the Statement of Financial Position as at 30" June 2013, Statement
of Comprehensive Income, Statement of Changes in reserves and the Statement of
Cash Flows for the year ttien ended, and a summary of significant accounting pohcnes
and other explanatory information as set out on pages 19 to 77.

'Management Resno'nsibi iig for the Finaﬁcial Statements

The management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with the International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and
the requirements of the NSSF Act (Cap 222) and for maintenance of such internal controls
that are necessary for the fair presentation of financial staternents that are free from
material misstatements, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

My responsibility as required by Article 163 of the Constitution of the Republic of Uganda is
to express an opinion on the financial statements based on my audit. I conducted my audit
In accordance with the International Standards on Auditing. Those standards requira that 1
comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obkain reasonable
assurance about whether the financial statements are free from material misstatement.,

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The pracedures selected depend on the Auditor's
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the fnancial
statements, whether due to fraud or errer. In making those risk assessments, the Auditor
considers internal controls relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectivenass of the
entity’s intemal control. An audit also ncltides evaluating the appropnateness of accounting
poiicies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as wel]
as evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.
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1 believe that the audit evidence I have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis
for my un-qualified audit opinion.

Part "A” of my report sets out my opinion on the financial statements. Part *B” which forms an
integral part of this report presents in detail all the significant audit findings made during the
audit which have been brought to the attention of management.

PART "A"

Opinion P o

In my opinion, the financial statements fairly present in all material respects the financial
position .of the NSSF as at 30™ June 2013 and the.income and expenditure for the year then

ended in accordance with the basis of accounting stated under note 2 to the financial
statements and in conformity with the IFRS and the requirements of the NSSF Act (Cap 222).

Emphasis of Matter

Without qualifying my opinion, attention is drawn to Note 35(b) of the financial statements,

» Notice of Assessment for Corporation Tax from URA

NSSF received a notice of assessment for Corporation Tax from Uganda Revenue Authority
(URA) amounting to UGX.49.7 billion, The liability arose from expenses that URA claims were
wrongly disallowed by the Fund. The Fund objected to the assessment and responded to the
matter raised by URA, and by the time of this report, URA had not responded with the final
outcome. No provision was made in the financial statements since URA had not informed the
Fund of the outcome. '

Other Matter

Section 19(1) of the National Audit Act, 2008 empowers me to satisfy myself that the financial
affalrs of the entity audited and public moneys under its control have been handled and
conducted with regularity and propriety by the accounting officer or any other responsible
officer. T draw your attention to the following matter that I consider significant in discharging
my responsibilities;

+» Unallocated members’ contributions in the :migration acodunl:

Emp'loyee contributions amounting to UGX.14 billion had not been credited to” members’
statements, but had been deposited tc a separate “migration account”, There is a risk of the |

6
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" members’ statements not reflecting the correct contributions and the migration {suspense)

account increasing.

V“u—,
John F. 5. Muwanga

AUDITOR GENERAL
31% January 2014
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PART “B"

DETAILED REPORT OF THE AUDITOR GENERAL

This section outlines the detailed audit findings, management responses and my

recommendations in respect thereof.

1.0

2.0

INTRODUCTION
Article 163 (3) of the Constitution of the Republic of Uganda requires me to audit and

report on the public accounts of Uganda and all public offices including the courts,
the central and local government administrations, universiﬁes, and public institutions
of the like nature and any public ¢orporation or other bodies or organizations
established by an Act of Parliament. In accordance with the same provision, 1

‘appointed M/s Ernst & Young, Certified Public Accountants to audit the NSSF on my

behalf and report to me s0 as to enable me report to Parliament.

BACKGROUND INFORMATION
National Social Security Fund (the “Fund”) is a corporate body domiciled In Uganda.

The Fund Is primarily involved in collection of contributions and investment of the
contributions in a professional manner to eam a good return to meet the benefit
obligations to its members as stipulated under the National Social Security Fund
(NSSF) Act, (Cap 222). The Fund is largely financed by the employees” and
employers” contributions. The toial contribution is 15% of the employees’ gross
salary, of which 10% is paid by the employer and 5% by the employee.

Government is currently implementing policy reforms whose objective is to liberalize
and regulate the retirement benefits sector. These reforms have entailed the
enactment of the Retirement Benefits Regulatory Authority Act, 2011, which came
Into force in September 2011. The new law establishes the Retirement Benefits
Authority (RBA) whose function is to regulate all the retirement schemes including
NSSF, and to grant a grace period of one year within which the Fund must obtain a

license from RBA.

Government also tabled the Retirement Benefits Sector Liberalization Bill, 2011
before Parliament whose objective among others, was to repeal the National Social
‘Security Fund Act. Nevertheless, management is drawing a strategic road map to

- enable the Fund transit from a statutory corporation created by the NSSF Act to a

Trust régistered and licensed by RBA and competing In a liberalized environment.

8




S e e o

3.0 AUDIT SCOPE _
The audit was carried out in accordance with the International Standards on Auditing
and' accordingly included a review of the accounting records, agreed procedures as

- was considered necessary. In conducting my reviews, special attention was paid to |
establish whether:-

& The Fund managers are managing the Fund in accordance with the NSSF Act and
whether they have adhered to the established financial compliance requirements;

b. The financial statementé'have been prepared in accordance with the IFRS and
the requirements of fhe NSSF Act (Cap 222} and that they present fairly the
finandal performance and position of the Fuid as at 30" June 2013;

c. Sufficient Internal confro!s have been applied consistently throughout the vear to
safeguard the assets of the Fund and mitigate the risk of misstatement of the
financial statements;

d. All necessary supporting documents and records have been maintained and are
in agreement with the financial statements presented;

e. Goods and services have been procured in accordance with the Government of
Uganda (GolU) procurement regulations; and f

f. Fund’s assets were well managed in the period under review.

4.0 PROCEDURES PERFORMED
1) Revenue/Receipts
Obtained schedules of receipts and reconciled the amounts to the Fund’s
cashbooks and bank statements.

2) Expenditure
Vouched transactions to establish whether documentation in support of the

expenditures agreed with the amounts and descriptions on the vouchers;
reviewed and reconciled the bank statement, transactions to test for occurrence
and whether they were property controlled and accounted for.

3) Internal Control System
Reviewed the internal control system of the Fund and its operations to establish
whether the controls were sound and were applied.throughout the period under
review.

o




5.0

5.1

5.2

4) Procurement .
Reviewed the procurement of goods and services under the Fund during the

period under review and reconciled with the pfocurement plan.

5) Fixed Asset Management
Reviewed the use and the management of the Fund’s assets during the period
under review,

6) Financjal Statements
Examined, on a test basis, e\ﬁdence supporting the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements; assessed the accounting principles used and significant
estirriates made by management; as well as evaluating the oVerall financial

statement presentation.

AUDIT FINDINGS
INTERNAL CONTROL, TAX AND IT ISSUES

Notice of Assessment for Corporation Tax from U

NSSF received a notice of assessment for Corporation Tax from Uganda Revenue
Authority (URA) amounting to Shs.49.7 billion, The liability arose from expenses that
URA daimed were wrongly disaliowed by the Fund. The Fund objected to the
assessment and responded to the matter but by the time of this report, URA had not
responded with the final outcome. No provision was made in the financial statements
since URA had not informed the Fund of the outcome.

Unallocated members’ contributions in t igration accoun

By the time of audit, employse contributions amounting to UGX.34 billion had not
been credited to members’ statements, but had been deposited to & separate
account referred to as “migration account”. There is a risk of statements not
reflecting the correct member's contributions and the migration (suspense) account
increasing. ‘

Management attributed this to either failure by employers to submit members’
schedules concurrently with the contribution remittances or efrors in the submitted
schedules and further explained that they had started on the enhancement of E-
Collection software where the employer schedules will be uploaded directly to the
NSSF servers/website by the employer rather than submitting them to the banks. I
await the outcorne of management’s remedial action.

10
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Un-secured Loan to related party

The Fund issued an unsecured 10 year loan facility of UGX.15,219,768,000 to
Uga_nda Ciays Limited (UCL) in 2010 with a grace period of 2 years. As at 30 June
2013, the loan still stood at UGX.15.2 billion. The repayments that were due in
January 2013 were not honoured biy UCL. It was noted that the fadlity was being
reviewed for possible restructuring and had also been assessed for impairment for
purposes of reporting in the financial statements, There is a risk of financial foss to
the fund in case UCL fails to repay the loan.

Management explained that the loan extended to UCL was to rescue it from
Imminent receivership and that the:lcan terms were being reviewed consistently with -
the company’s capacity to.service, T await the cutcome of management’s actions and
will review the recoverability of this loan recovery in the subseguent period.

Weaknesses in the management of members” contributions

Through review of the members’ accounts, audit noted the following weaknesses in

the management of the members’ contributions;

+ There was no evidence to suggest that adequate reviews were carried out on
entries posted to the member’s accounts. For example, UGX.30 million had been
transferred from a membes’s account to the reserve account in error, aithough
this Was later reversed.

+ There were some members’ accounts with debit balances of up to UGX.25G million
due to miss postings. These were subsequently reversed,

« For the period 2012/13, there were contributions bv different employers for which
receipts bearing the same receipt numbers were issued. This was due to system
weaknesses.,

There is a risk of misstatement of the members” fund balances and the issuing of
receipts bearing the same receipt numbers may result into errors and irregularities,
Management explained that controls were to be reviewed to ensure that the error
rate is lowered.

I have advised management to ensure that all postings to the members’ accounts
are periodically reviewed and to ensure that receipts are identified with unique
receipt numbers,

11



5.5

5.6

5.7

Contributions not credited
As at 30™ June 2013, the fund had contributions for members amounting to UGX.511

whose details had been obtained and the upload process initiated with only approval
pending for the amounts to be credited on the members’ accounts. Consequently the
members’ accounts were not fairly stated. Management attributed this to missing
schedules and staff manpower shortages but explained that the backlog had been
progressively cleared, with a balance of UGX.79 million pending.

I have advised management to ensure that all contributions in the ‘pending approval’
category are reviewed and posted to the members’ accounts.

Long outstanding rent receivables

As at 30 June 2013, there were tent receivable balances of UGX.1.1 billion (Workers
House — UGX.0.6 billion and Social Security House — UGX.0.5 billion) that had been
outstanding for over 180 days. Further analysis revealed that these were composed
of amounts due from private and govemment entities of UGX 0.3 billion and UGX
0.75 billion respectively. The Fund made provisions for doubtful debtors of UGX 0.45
billion and UGX 0.37 billion in the financial statements in selation to the workers
house and the Social Security House respectively. There is a risk of finandial loss to
the Fund through uncollected rent

1 have advised management to continuously follow the outstanding debtors to
enswre all rent arrears are collected.

Securi sit_not collected from tenants

The tenancy agreements between the Fund and its tenants requires the Fund to
collect security deposit equivalent to one month’s rent which was meant to cover
repair costs in the event of damage to the premises andfor fixtures by the tenant.
However, the Fund did not collect the said deposits in the year urnder review. The
Fund risks incurring losses in repairing damages which ordinarily would have been
covered by the security deposits. Management explained that it had begun enforcing
the dause and as a result 27 tenants had obliged and paid the security deposits and
faulted the Government tenants who occupy 76% of space but do not pay Security
deposits. '

1 have advised management to enforce the collection of security deposits from all
tenants as provided for in the tenancy agreements.

12
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5.9

Lack of limits for individual phone costs chargeable to the Fund

It was noted that phone bills for entitled officers are charged to the Fund in full
without assessing the extent of non-business related calis. There is a risk of financial
loss to the Fund to the extent of the personal call costs being ¢harged as business
related costs. Management explained that it was to review the phone usage policy,
and stated that the Fund had already established limits for prepaid users. I await the
outcome of the review process of the phone usage policy.

Weakness in the groéu‘remen!; and disposal process

A review of the procuEement and disposal processes at the Fund revealed the

following;

» There was no signed contract for the security services being offered by Saracen.

A loss could be occasioned to the Fund in future if disputes arose between the
Fund and Saracen,.
Management explained that following terror threats, Uganda Police offered the
Very Important Persons Protection Unit (VIPPU) protection to the Fund and
Saracen were temperatily engaged pending Palice’s commitment on the numbers
to be committed to NSSF protection. Management further stated that conclusicn
of the procurement process was expected by February 2014.

s+ The Fund disposed of a plot of land at UGX.650 million had been purchased at
the same amount and had a cartying value of UGX.705 million resulting into a
loss on disposal of UGX 56 million because it lacked an access road. There was
no evidence to indicate that the Fund performed a cost bepefit analysis of
attempting to gain an access road to the property and the impact thereof on the
value of the property.

Management explained that the disposal of land followed due process and the
transfer was signed off by the Board Chairman after confirming that the land had
NO access.

» The board appointed two Board Advisors during the year but there was no
evidence that a proper procurement process was followed during recruitment.
Audit was only provided with the curriculum vitae of the two Board Advisers.

1 have advised the management of the Fund to ensure that contracts are signed for

alt service providers and to develop policies and procedures for the appointment of

Board Advisors.

13
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Discrepancies in Lubowa land that require urgent attention

The fund owns a piece of land measuring 563 Acres sat Lubowa but the following
were noted arising from the survey done by Geomaps who were engaged by the
fund to verify the boundaries of this land;

» A total of 4.764 acres on Plot 1058 block 269 belonging to the Fund had been
encroached on with one pillar at one end missing,

« Plot 274, block 269 and Plot 1322 block 269 had their pillars erected beyond the
correct boundaries indicating that NSSF had encroached on the adjacent plots by
1.752 acres 8,283 acres, respectively.

]

The Fund risks losing its land to the encroachers and conversely, the Fund may be
sued for encroachment on other people’s land. -

The management of the Fund explained that they had already filed a High Court suit
seeking a court order to evict the encroachers and the case was pending heating in
the Land Division of the High Court, Another case was yet to be filed against another
encroacher, They further stated that the Ministry of Lands reviewed the Geomaps
report and advised that the Funds’ Pillars are within boundary and not encroaching

A

on any land.

I have advised management of the Fund to act on the recommendations made by
Geomaps in solving the boundary issues concerning the land at Lubowa.

Dealing with service providers with contributions arrears .
Soleh Boneh International (SBI) and Saracen have contributions in arrears which

have not been settled vet these are service providers of the Fund. Dealing with
service providers who are not complying with the NSSF Act is indicative of laxity in
enforcing compliance and eéncourages non-compliance. '

Management explained that Saracen had agreed with the Fund on a payment plan
where NSSF applied invoice payments to the arrears while SBI was at the time under

compliance audit review.

I have advised the Fund management to enforce the recovery of the arrears from

existing suppliers and to ensure that all potential suppliers are subjected to

compliance reviews before being engaged.

14
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5.12 Lack ofa data classification_policy

5.13

5.14

NSSE does not have a data classification policy and at the very minimum a policy
statement on it in the security policy. If data is not classified, important data might
not be accorded the right amount of controls tc ensure that it is not ilegally
accessed. Management noted the anomaly and pledged to include it in the Fund's
security implementation road map to be implemented by the Risk department.

1 have advised the management to hasten the development of a data dassification
palicy which should be communicated and implemented appropriately.

COMPLIANCEISSUES |
Lack of detailed risk analysis of employers for compliance audit

“The Fund lacked documented policy/guidelines to be foltowed by the Compliance unit
and the branches while determining employers to be audited. The Compliance
Officers in the Branches visited were only aware of the internal factors considered in
selection of employers. In the absence of the documented policy/guidelines, the
selection of employers for audit may be haphazard and inconsistent at the branches.

Management pledged to streamiine and update the Commerdial Procedures manual
guide with all the external information sources used and also keep on improving the
processes.

1 have advised management to institute formal risk assessment palicy/guidelines
detailing all the risk factors that the Fund needs to consider during the selection of
employers to be audited.

Lack of annual plans for c_om_t_aliance audits

The Compliance unit had no detailed annual plans to guide compliance audits. Plans
were usually done on quarterly and adhoc basis. The branches independently
determined which employers to audit, \.;vith minimal involvement of the Head Office
with exception of those predeﬁned em-ployers where the Head Office is required to
be involved by policy. In the circumstances there is no clear road map of which
audits are to be carried cut each financial year,

I have advised the Fund management to develop annual audit plans for the intended
compliance audits of employers. '

15
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5.15

5.16

4L£;§k of oversight on the activities of the Compliance Unit

There was no direct oversight exerdsed by those charged with govemance over the
activities of the Compliance Unit. For example, there is no committee of the Board of
Directors that comprehensively discusses the role and activities of the Compllance
unit, discusses and approves the work plan for each financial year, and monitors the
progress and results of the audits done by the unit. Consequently, neither is there a

sense of accountability by the Compliance Unit nor anyone to provide it with a sense.

of direction.

1 advised that the Board of Directors puts in place measures to enable a
comprehensively exercise of oversight over the work of the Compliance Unit.

Inadequate documentation and review of compliance audit files

a) There were no documented audit programs détaiiing the procedures to be executed

by staff while in the field. In addition, there were no adequate working papers on the
audit files to evidence the procedures executed, results of the procedures and the
conclusions reached. Thus the compliance audit reports issued were not supported
by sufficient appropriate audit documentation. In absence of appropriate sufficient
documentation, the validity of the audit reports and conclusions reached could easily
be challenged and, emrors and irregularities might not be timely prevented or
detected and carrecied by the review process.

b) It was also noted that in most instances field staff documentation was not

adequately reviewed and not cross-referenced to the audit report. For instance, the
reports that audit reviewed had errors and inconsistencies ranging from arithmetical
inaccuracies while others did not indicate interest due. For example in report for
Munyonyo Commonwealth Resort dated 5™ April 2012, outstanding confributions of
UGX.193,284,515 were reported but the re-computation revealed that the figure
total was actually UGX.202,229,700. This could result into issuing audit reports with
wrong assessments.

Management. explained that all audits above the threshold of UGX.500M are reviewed
at Head Office by both the Compliance Manager and by the Head of Commercial
before finalization including a review of the scanned source documents as a quality

contrcl measure.

.1 have advised management to develop standardized audit programs and have them
'approved'by senior management for use during the audit field work and to ensure

16
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5.17

- 518

5.19

ti;r,at minimum review requirements ate set to ensure that the work done and reports

are authenticated.

Formal criteria for assessing employer's penalty waiver requests

In accordance wifh Section 14 (2), the Managing Director may limit the whole or part
of any penalty under this section subject to such conditions as he or she may
determine. However, there is no policy that defines the “conditions” under which
penalties may be waived. Additionally, there are no formal criteria followed by
Branch Managers and Compliance Relationship Managers in recommending
employer's waiver requests, The lack of the above could result in unautherized

waivers and/or imegularities,

Management acknowledged that there was no specific policy on waivers but a draft
was being finalized for approval. Nevertheless, NSSF was routinely waiving penalties
for ali employers who fully paid up their arrears regardless of the amount of the
penalties involved. I have advised the Fund management to put in placa a policy
stipulating the conditions under which penalties may be waived as well as the extent
of the amounts to be waived.

Waiver of special contributions and adjustments on assessments

It was noted that the Fund waived special contributions for expatriates working for
SBI, Speke Group of Companies and Munyoyo Commonwealth Resort Ltd totaling to
UGX.631,119,459 but there was no evidence that exemptions had been granted for

standard/special contributions for the expatriates.

The absence of evidence on file of exemptions granted to SBI, Speke Group of
Companies and Munyonyo for standard/special contributions for expatriates could be
an indication that the waivers were irregularly granted. I have advised the Fund
management to ensure that the waiving of standard or special contributions be
controlled and the above waivers to be revisited for possible recoveries. In addition
the final assessments and changes thereof should always be adequately supported
and documentation filed.

Follows up of prior year audit recommendations

A review of the status of implementation of prior year's audit recommendations
revealed that some of them had not been implemented, as shown in the following

17




table. This is indicative of management’s attitude towards the relevance of the audit _

function.
N Audit Issue ‘Status of Implementation
ol
1 | Unallocated Members’ | Still obtaining. In the period under review the

Contributions - UGX. 24.6 hillion

same was pointed out.

Non-compliance with the Bidding
Process Regarding the Disposal
of the Mbuya Property

No repeat of the anomaly.

lives of Assets

3 [ Lack of timely reconciliations for | Implemented. The staff mortgage balance was
the Housing Finance Bank | adequately reconciled in the current year.
Limited Staff Mortgages '

4 |Use of Inappropriate Foreign | Same was noted in the current year where the
Exchange Rates for Income System does not revalue all foreign balances.

5 I Non re-assessment of useful | Implemented. The fund hired a service

provider to reassess the useful lives of its
assets

Failwe to undertake a
comprehensive post
implementation review after cui-
over period

Implemented. The fund contracted a service
provider to do the post implementation
review.

Pay As You Eam (PAYE) due on
airtime benefit

Not implemented. There was no evidence to
demonstrate that the aitime used by
employees was entirely for business purpose.

Nonexistence  of  Transfer

Pricing Documentation

Not implemented. The fund still does not have
a transfer pricing document.

1 have advised management to lmplement the audit recommendations so as to

ensure enhanced accountability and better stewardship.
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NATIONAL SOCIAL SECURITY FUND
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2013

Revenue

Intarest incomea
Rental income
Pividend income

Total revenue

Other income/({loss)
Other operating income

*Fair value gains/(losses) from equity investments

Expenditure

Administrative expenses

Cther operating expenses

Amortisation of prepaid land lease rentals
Amortisafion of intangible assets
Depreciation of praperty and equipment
Interest payable on Alcon provision

Total expenditure

Share of resulis from Associates

Surplus from operations
Fair value gains on investment properties

Surplus before tax

Incorne fax expense

Surplus for the year

Other comprehensive income, het of tax

Share of resuits from Associates
Income fax effect

Total comprehensive income, nat of tax

19

Note

26
27
30

22

25
1

12{a)

2013 2012
Ushs 000 Ushs 000
373,847,806 264,457,635
8,259,951 8,276,064
7.974.425 3662420
300,082,182 276,396,119
57,219.215 5,042,111
' 83725285 (17.078.324)
00,044500 (11,136.213)
(43502,898) (35,269,737)
(28.260,559)  (8,862,356)
- (14,576)
(1,666,223)  {1,497,087)
(1,939,965)  (5,495,845)
- _{2,488,373)
(75,369.645) (53.6256,974)
7.250.438 6,714,531
412,916475 218,348,463
- _67.851,140
412,916475 276,299,603
(69.616,573) (37.462.230)
343,299,902 238,837,373
1,955,430 -
{586,629} -
—_1.368.801 -
244668702  238837.373
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NATIONAL SOGIAL SECURITY FUND
STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
AS AT 30 JUNE 2013

ASSETS

Cash and bank balances

Deposits with commercial banks

Equity securities held-for-trading

Trade and other receivables

Investments in securities hekl-to-maturity
Equity Investments at fair value through profit or loss
Loans and advances

Inventories

Non-current assets held for sale
Investments in associates

Other invesiments

Capital work-in-progress

Investment properties

Intangible assets

Property and equipment

Total Assets

LIABILITIES
Vithholding tax payable
Other payables '
Provisions for litigation

MEMBERS’ FUNDS AND RESERVES

Accumulated members’ funds
Reserve account
Accumulated surplus/{deficit)

Share of associates revaluation reserve

Total members’ funds, reserves and Habilities

Note

13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27

28
29
30

31
32

2013 2012

Ushs 000 Ushs 000
15,376,671 17,414,010
731,954,085  686,151323
35,313,327 20,870429
16,244 417 22592219
1,000,125710  1,386,294688
153,851,580 78,291,687
46,299,537 62,044,823
4,626 7,802
256,280 256,29D
74,720,713 68,237,191

- 10,300

235,676,401 -
169,905326 385582588
8,414,853 10,068,810
4,026,152 5,142.081
3481160608 2742964131
901,895 901,895
20,197,871 17,353,026
9,239,702 41,500470
30,330468 59,845,391
3322576227  2,621,222866
36,829,033 34,328,993
90,056,169 27,566,881
1,368,801 -
3450830230  2,683,118.740
3481160608 2742904131

e financial stalements were approved for issue by the Board of Directors on

Mr. Richard Byarugaba @

Managing Director:

o7 is behalfby:

el

M. Ivan Kyayonk;

Chairman:

Mrs. Sarah Walusimbi W

Director:
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Mr. Mark Obia

Ag. Corporation Secretar_y‘—%)——-r
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NATIONAL SOGIAL SEGURITY FUND
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2013

Net cash used in operating activities

' Investing activities

Purchase of property and equipment
Purchase of intangible asset

Additions to investment properties

Purchase of equily investments

Purchase of heldfor-trading equity securities
Bonus shares issued

Proceeds from disposal of property and
equipment

Proceeds from disposal of investment property.
Payment for capital work-in-progress
Increasef(Decrease) in loans and advances
Net cash flows used in investing activities

Financing activities

Dividends received

Benefits paid out to members
Conlribufions received from members
Interest recovered on arrears l
Special contributions and fines & penalties
Net cash flows from financing activities

(Decrease)/Increase in cash and cash
equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents at 1 July
Cash and cash equivalents at 30 June

22

= rces

2013

Ushs 000

(466,081,005)

(1,530,206)
(12,266)
(17,159,139)
(37,620,100)
(14,442,898)

(3,596,850)

650,000

16,745,286
(56,966,173)

244,088
(140,051,845)
552,683,614
7,324,349
2,500,040
429,700,246

(100,347,022)
446,199,959
345.852,937

2012
Ushs 000

(264,760,693}

(1,851,403)
. (1,467,811)
(13,001,558)
(1,346,846)
{20,870,429)

(19,249,336)

1,720,825
3,421,500

(3,148,617}
{55,791,675)

1,660,696
(101,376,498)
472,861,120
6,341,693
1,625,282
381,112,293

60,559,825
385,640,034

446,199,959

x




NATIONAL SOCIAL SECURITY FUND -
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1.

FUND INFORMATION

National Social Security Fund (the “Fund”) is a comorate body domiciled in Uganda.
The Fund is primarily involved in collection of contribufions and investment of the
contributions in a professional manner o eam a goed return to meet the benefit
obligaticns to its members as stipulated under the National Social Security Fund
{NSSF) Act (Cap 222),

Government is currently implementing policy reforms whose objective is a liberalised
and regulated retirement benefits sector. These reforms have entailed the enactment of
the Retirement Benefits Regulatory Authority Act 2011, which came into force in
September 2011. The new law establishes the Retirement Benefits Authority (RBA)
whose function is to regulate all retirement schemes including NSSF, and grants a
grace period of ane year within which the Fund must obtain a licence from RBA.

Govemment has also iabled the Retirement Benefits Sector Liberalisation 8ili 2011
before Parliament whose objeclive among others, is to repeal the Mational Social
Security Fund Act. There is a Task Force that was créated io review the Bill. The Task
Force is recommending among ah amendment to, rather than a repeal of the NSSF Act.
There are other recommendations that will ensure that NSSF continues as a viable
entity. Nevertheless, managerent is drawing a strategic road map to ehable the Fund
transit from a statutory comporation created by the NSSF Act fo a trust registered and
licensed by RBA and competing in a liberalised environment.

The Fund shall abide by the licensing and minimum capital thresholds of the RBA when
communicated. The Fund is also listed in Class 1 of the Public Enterprises Reform and
Divestiture Act as an entity in which the Govemment of Uganda (Gol)) shall retain
100% control and/or ownership. Conseguently management's expectation is ihat the
Government will underwrite the capital requirements for licensing set by the regulator. In
the alternative, the Fund shall mobitise sufficient funds to ensure its continued existence
in the new liberalised and regulated framework.

The Board of Directors assessed the implications of the above developments and
determined that they do not have an effect on the Fund's going concern in the
foreseeable future,

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The financial statements of the Fund have been prepared in accordance with
International Finandial Reporting Standards (IFRS), as issued by the Intemational
Accounting Standards Board (IASB), and the requirements of the Ugandan Mational
Sacial Security Act (Cap 222).

The financial staternents have baen prepared con a histeoricat cost basis except for some
financial asseis (equity investments heldfortrading and designated at fair value
through profit or loss), and investment properties that have been measured at fair value,
The financial statements are presented in Uganda shillings {Ushs), which is the Fund's
functionai currency, and all values are rounded off to the nearest thousand (Ushs G0D),

“except when otherwise indicated.
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NATIONAL SQCIAL SECURITY FUND -~

NOTES TG THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

3. SUMMARY SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The principal accounting policies set out below have been applied consistently to all
periods presented in the financial statements.

{3} Investment in Associates and Joint Venlures

The Fund’s investments in its associates and joint ventures are accourted for using
the equity method. An associate is an entity in which the Fund has significant
influence but not control over the financial and operating policies. Significant

¢ . influence is presumed to exist when the Fund holds 20 to 50 percent of the voting
power of another entity. Joint ventures are those entities over whosa activities the
Fund has joint confrol, established by coniractual agreement and requiring
unanimous consent for strategic financial and operating decisions. Under the equity
method, the investment in the associaies and joint venture is carried in the
statement of financial position at cost plus post acquisition changes in the Fund’s
share of net assels of the associate.

The statement of comprehensive income reflects the share of the resuits of
operations of the assoclate. The share of the results of an associate is shown on
the face of the statement of comprehensive income. These are the resuits
attributable to equity holders of the associate and therefore the resulls after tax and
nhon-controlling interests in the subsidiaries of the associate. Where necessary,
adjustments are made to bring the accounting policies of the associates in line with
those of the Fund.

(b) Foreign currencies

Transactions in foreign currencies during the year are converted into Uganda
Shillings at the exchange rate ruling at the date of the transaction. Monetary assets
and liabiliies denominated in foreign currercies at the reporting date are translated
into Uganda Shillings at the exchange rate ruling at that date. Non-monetary assets
and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies that are measured at fair value are
translated to Uganda Shillings at the date when the fair value was determined.
Foreign currency gains and losses arising from translation are recognised in the
statement of comprehensive income. :

(¢) Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognised to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits
will flow to the Fund and the revenue can be reliably measured, regardless of when
the payment is being made. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the
consideration received or receivable, taking into account contractually defined terms
of payment. The following specific’ recognition criteria must also be met before
revanue is recognised:

(i) Interest income

For all financial instrumentis measured at amortised cost, interest income or
expense is recorded using the effective interest rate {EIR), which is the rate that .
exaclly discounts the estimated future cash payments or receipts through. the
expected life of the financial instrument or a sharler period, where appropriate, to
the net carrying amount of the financial asset or liability.

-
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NATIONAL SOGIAL SECURITY FUND
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

3.

SUMMARY SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

(d)

fi) Dividends
Dividend income is recognised when the rightto receive dividends is established.

(i} Rental income

Rental income from mvestment properﬂes is recognized in the statement of
comprehensive on the straight line basis over the term of the lease.

() Cther income .

Other income camprises gains less losses related to trading assets and liabiities,
and includes gains from disposal of Fund assets and all realised and unreatised
foreign exchange differences. .

Financial instruments — initial recognition and subseqguent measurement
iy  Financial assets

Initial recognition and measurement

Finandial assets within tha scope of IAS 39 are classified as financial assets at fair
value through profit or loss, loans and receivables, held-to-maturity investments,
available-for-sale financial assets, or as derivatives designated as hedging
instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate. The Fund determines the
classification of its financial assets at initial recognition. All financial assets are
recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of investments not at fair value
through profit or foss, diractly atiributable transaction costs. The Fund's financial
assels include cash and cash equivalents, trade and other recsivables, loans and
advances, deposits with commercial banks, investments in government and
corporate bonds and equity investments.

Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their classification as
follows:

Financial assets at fair value through profitor loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss include financial assets
designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss. Financial
assels at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the statement of financial
position at fair value with changes in fair value recognised in surplus or deficit.

Loans and advances

Loans and advarces are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments that are not quoted in an active market. After initial measurement, such
financial asseis are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest rate method (EIR), less impaiment. Amortised cost is calculated by taking
into accaunt any discount or premium on acqunsmon and fees or costs that are an
integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in interest income in the

2z
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NATIONAL SOCIAL SEGURITY FUND
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) ‘

3. SUMMARY SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

statement of comprehensive income. The losses arising from impairment are
recognised in impaiment losses in the statement of comprehensive income.

Held-fo-maturity investments

Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments and fixed
matuities are classified as held-to-maturity when the Fund has the posilive
intention and ability to hold it fo maturity. After initial measurement, held-tomaturity
investments are measured at amortised cost uging the effective interest method,
less impaiment. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The
EIR amortisation is included in interest income in the statement of comprehensive
income. :

Other receivables

Other receivables are caried at amortised cost which approximates the original
invoice amount less provision made for impairment losses. An allowance for
impairment of other receivables is established when there is objective avidence that
the Fund will not be able to collect all amounts due according to the original terms
of receivables.

Derecognition’

A financlal asset (or, where applicable a part of 2 financial asset or part of a fund of
similar financial assets) is derecognised when:

e The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired.

+ The Fund has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has
assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material
delay to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement; and either (a} the
Fund has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asse, or (b}
the Fund has neither transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and
rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Fund has transferred ils rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has
entered into a pass-through arrangement, and has neither transferred nor retained
substantially alt of the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the
asset, the asset is recognised to the extent of the Fund’s continuing involvement in
the asset. In that case, the Fund also recognises an associated hability. The
transferred asset and the associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects
the rights and obligations that the Fund has retained.

ii} Impairment of financial assets

The Fund assesses at each reporting date whether there is any objective avidence
that a financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset or a
‘group of financial assets is deemed to be impaired if, and only if, there is objective
evidence of impaiment as a result of one or more events that has occurred after
the initiat recognition of the asset (an incurred Joss event) and that loss evenl has

26
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NATIONAL SOCIAL SECURITY FUND
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (GONTINUED)

3. SUMMARY SIGNIFICANT AGCOUNTING POLICIES {CONT'D)

an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the finarcial asset or the group of
financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence of impairment may include
indications that the debtors or a group of debtors is experiencing sighificant financial
difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the probability that
they will enter bankruptey or other financial reorganisation and where observable
data indicate that there is a measurable decsease in the estimated future eash
flows, such as changss in amears or economic conditions that correlate with
defaults.

Financial assets carrled at amortised cost  ° '

For financial assets carted at amortised cost, the Fund first assesses whether
objective evidence of impaiment exists individually for financial assets that are
individualy significant, or collectively for finansial assets that are not individually
significant. If the Fund determines that no objective evidence of impainment exists
for an individually assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, it includes
the asset in a group of financial assets with similar credit risk characteristics and
collectively assesses them for impaimment. Assels that are individually assessed for
impaiment and for which an impaiment loss is, or continues to be, recognised are
notinduded ina collective assessment of impairment.

If there is objective evidence that an impaiment loss has been incurred, the amount
of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset's Garrying amount and
the present value of estimated future cash flows {excluding future expected credit
Josses that have not yet been incumed). The present value of the estimated future
cash flows is discounted at the financial asset's original effective interest rate. If a
loan has a variable interest rate, the discount rate for measuring any impaiment
loss is the current effective interest rate,

The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance y—
account and the amount of the loss is recognised in surplus or deficit. Interest
income continues to be accrued on the reduced camrying amount and is accrued
using the rate of interest used to discount the future cash flows for the purpose of
measuring the impaimment loss. The interest income is recorded as part of finance
income in the statement of comprehensive income. Loans together with the
associated allowance are written off when there is no realistic prospect of future
recovery and all collateral has been realised or has been transferred to the Fund. If,
in a subsequent year, the amount of the estimated impairment loss increases ar
decreases because of an event oceurring after the impairment was recognised, the
previously recognised impairment loss is increased or reduced by adjusting the
allowance account. If a future write-off is later recovered, the recovery is credited to
finance costs in the statement of comprehensive income.

iii) Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement
Financial liabilities within the scope of IAS 39 are classfﬁed as financial lisbilties at

fair value through profit or loss, loans and berowings measured at amortised cost, -
or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an effactive hedge, as

ye
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NA'}'IONAL SOCIAL SECURITY FUND

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {CONTINUED)

3. SUMMA_RY'SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {(CONTD)

{e)

H

approptiate. The Fund determines the classification of its financial liabilities at :mtxal
recognition.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value, plus, in the case of loans
and borrowings, directly attributable transaction costs.

The Fund's financial liabilities include trade and other payables.

Subsequent measurement .

-

The measurement of financial liabiliies depends on their classification as follows:
Trade payables

Trade payables include trade payables and are subsequenly measured at
amortised cost, Gains and losses on derecognition and amortisation are recognised
in surplus or deficit.

Other accounts payable

Other accounts payable are caried at amortised cost, which approximates the
consideration to be paid in the future for goods and services received.

Berecognition

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is
discharged or cancelled or expires.

Offsetting

Financial assets and liabiliies are offset and the net amount reported in the
statament of financial positich when there is a legally enforceable right to set off the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis, or realise the
asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

Fair value of financial Instruments

The fair value of financial instruments that are traded in active markets at each
reporting date is determined by reference to quoted market prices or dealer price
guotations (bid price for long positions and ask price for short positions), without
any deduction of transaction costs.

For finarcial instruments not fraded in an active market, the fair value is determined
using appropriate valuation techniques. Such technigues may include using recent
arm’s length market transactions; reference to the current fair value of another
instrument that is substantiaily tha same; a discounted cash flow analysis or other
valuation models.

An analysis of fair values of financial instruments and further deta:ls as to how they
are maasured are provided in Note 4 and 18.

28
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NATIONAL SOCIAL SECURITY FUND .
NGTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED}

3. SUMMARY SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {CONT'D)
(g} Prope'rty and equipmént, and intangible assets

Property and equipment, and intangible assets are slated at cost less accumulated
depreciation or amortisation and accumulated impairment losses, if any. Cost
includes expenditures that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the asset.
The cost of self-constructed assets includes the cost of materials and direct labour,
any other costs directly attributable to bringing the asset to a working condition for
its intended use, and the costs of dismantling and removing the items and restoring
the site on which they are located.
L oL

Purchased software that is integral to the functionality of the related equipment is
capitalised as part of that equipment..

The cost of replacing part of an item of property and equipment is recognized in the
canying value of the item if it is probable that the future economic benefits
embodied within the part will flow to the Fund and its cost can be measured reliably.
The carmying value of the replaced part is de-recognized. The cost of day to day
servicing of the property and equipment is recognized in surplus or deficit as
incurred.

Depreciation is recognized in surplus or deficit and calculated to write off the cost of
the property and equipment on a straight line basis over the expected useful lives of
the assets concerned, and intangible assets are also on straight line basis. Land is

not depreciated.
The estimated usaful lives for the current and comparative periods are as follows: -
Percentage
Buildings 5%
Machinery 20 %
Molor vehicles 20 %
Furniture and gquipment 125%
Computer equipment 25%
Intangible assets {Software) 10%

Management and directors review the depreciation methods, residual value and
useful life of an asset at the year end and any change censidered to be appropriate
is recorded in surplus or deficit as a change in estimates.

Gains and losses on disposal of an item of property and equipment are determined
by comparing the proceeds from disposal with the carrying vaiue of property and
equipment and recognized netwithin other income in profit or loss.

(h) Investment properties

Investment properiies are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs. The
carrying amount includes the cost of replacing part of an existing investment
property at the time that cost is incurred if the recognition criteria are met and
excludes the costs of day-to-day servicing of an investment property. Subsequentio
initial recognition, investment properties are stated at fair value, which reflects
market conditions at the reporting date. Gains or losses arising from changes in the
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3. _ SUMMARY SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

Cfair values of nvestment properties are included in surplus or deficit in the period in’
which they arise.

Fair values are evaluated annuallyby an accredited external, indépendent valuer.

Investment properties are darecognised when either they have been disposed off or
when the investment property is permanently withdrawn from use and no future
economic benefit is expected from its disposal. The difference between the net
disposal proceeds and the carying amount of the asset is recognised in surplus or
. deficit in the period of derecognition.

N

Transfers are made fo or from investment property only when there is a change in
use. For a transfer from investment property to owner-occupied properly, the

- deemed cost for subsequent accounting is the fair value at the date of change in
use. When the use of properly changes from owner cccupied to investment
property, the property is re-measured at fair value and reclassified as investment
property. Any gain arsing on revaluation is recognized through other
comprehensive income. Any loss arising on revaluation is recognized through the
surplus or det“ cit.

{iy Inventories

Inventories are measured at the lower of cost and net reatizable value. The cost of
inventories is based on first-indirst out principle and includes the expenditure
incurred in acquiring the inventory, and other costs incurred in bringing them to their
existing location and conditian.

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business,
less the estimated cost of completion and selling expenses or the replacement cost
as appropriate.

{j} Impairment of non-financial assets

The carrying amounts of the Fund’s non-financial assets other than investment
properties, and inventories are reviewed at each reporting date to determine
whether there is any indication of impaiment. If such condition exists, the asset's
recoverable amount is estimated and an impaimment loss recognised in surplus or
deficit whenever the carmying amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount.

An asset’s recoverable amaunt is the higher of an asset's or cash-generating unit's
(CGU) fair value less costs to sell and its value in use and is determined for an
individual asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets.

An impaiment loss is reversed if there has been a change in the estimates used to
determiné the recoverable amount. An impaiment foss is reversed only to the
extent that the assets’ carrying amount that would have been determined net of
depreciation or amoriization if ne impainment loss was recognized.
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3. SUMMARY SIGNIFICANT ACGOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)
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Employee benefits

(i) Short-term benefits

Short term employee benefit obligations are measured on an un-discounted basis
and are expensed as the related service is performed. A liability is recognized for an
amount expecied to be paid under short term bonus or profit sharing plans, if the
Fund has a present legal or constructive obligation to pay this amount as a result of
the past service provided by the employee and the obligation by the employee and

the obligations can be estimated reliably. .

(i} Defined contribution plan

Employees of the Fund contribute to the defined contribution pension plan. The
contribution payable to the plan is in proportion to the services rendered to the Fund
by the employees and is recorded as an expense under ‘staff costs’. Unpaid
contributions are recorded as a liability. The Fund also contributes to the plan on
behalf of the employees. Contributions to the planand NSSF are charged to surplus
or deficit when incurred. _ ' '

Provisions

A provision is recognised if, as a resuit of a past event, the Fund has a present
legal or constructive obligation that-can be estimated reliably and it is probable that
an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the obligation. Provisions
are determined by discounting the expected future cash flows at a pre-tax rate that
refiects cutrent market assessments of the time value of money and, where
appropiiate, the risks specific to the liability. '

Where the Fund expects a provision fo be reimbursed, for exaniple under an
insurance contract, the reimbursement is recognised as a separate asset but only
when the reimbursement is virtually certain

Income tax

Income tax expense comprises current tax and change in deferred tax. Income tax
expense is recognised in profit or loss except to the extent that it relates to items
recognised through other comprehensive income or equity, in which case it is
recoghised through other comprehensive income or equity.

Cument tax is provided for on the surplus for the year adjusted in accordance with
the Ugandan Income Tax Act. Cument income tax assets and liabilties for the
current and prior periods are measured at the amount expected to be recovered
from or paid to the taxation authorities. )

Deferred tax is provided for using the liability method, for all temperary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and labilities for financial reporting
purposes and the amounis used for taxation purposes. However, if the defemad tax
arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction other than a
business combination that at the time of the transaction affects neither accounting
nor taxable profit or loss, it is not accounted for. tn respect of temporary differences
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3 SUMMARY SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

associated with investments in subsidiaries, associales and interests in joinmt
; ventures, deferred tax assets and liabilties are not recognised where the timing of
! the reversal of the temporary differences can be confrolled and it is probable that
the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax losses to the extent that it is
probable that taxable profit will be available against which the losses can be
uilised. Unrecognised deferred tax assets are reassessed at each reporting date
and are recognised to the extent that it has become probable that future taxable
profit will allow thé deferred tax asset to be recovered. b

Deferred income tax assets and deferred income tax liabilities are offset, if a legally
enforceable right exists to set off current tax assets against cuvent income tax
liabiliies and the deferred income taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the
same taxation authority.

Tax is recognized as an expensefiincome), except to the extent that the tax arises
from a transaction which is recognized directly in other comprehensive income or
equity. In this case the tax is also recognized in other comprehensive income or

equity.

Revenue, expenses and assets are recognised net of the amount of value added
tax except:

s+ where the value added tax incurred on a purchase of assets or rendering of
services is not secoverable from the taxation authority, in which case the value
added tax is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part
of the expense item as applicable; and

e . receivables and payables that are stated with the amount of value added tax

inctuded.

; The net amount of value added tax recoverable from, or payable to, the taxation
} authority §s included as part of accounts receivables or account payables in the
staternent of financial position.

{n) Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents are measured at amorlised cost subsequent to initial
; recogniton. For the purposes of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash
equivalents comprise balances with less than 90 days maturity from the reporling
i date and include cash and balances with banks, treasury bills and other eligible bills
net of bank overdrafis.

i {o) Capital work-in-progress

The ongoing construction/installation of capital projects are recorded at the cost to
date or valuation and are only transferred into the relevant assets calegories once
sompletzd -and commissioned. No depreciation is computed on capital work-in-
progress as these assets are not yet available for use. However, an expected
1 impaiment loss on capital work-in-progress is recognized immediately in surplus or
: Heficit.
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3. SUMMARY SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

Lt Crrms i s n

{p} Members’ fundé

{a)

n

(i) Contributions from members

Contributions from emplovees remitted by the employers are recognized on a cash
basis. Contributions due but not yet received at the end of the financial year are not
accrued butaccounted for and recognized in subsequent years when received,

{ii} Benefit payments o members

Benefits to members are accounted for on a cash basis. Benefit payments made
but not collected by members are written back in the cash book and no liability
thereof recognized in the financial statements. -

{iii) Interest payments fo members

Interest payable on member's accumulated contributions is calculated based on the
opening accumulated contributions (standard confribution plus interest) less
benefits paid during the vear. The effective interest rate used to compule interest
accrued to members as approved by the Minister of Finance, Planning & Economic
Development in accordance with Section 35 (1) and (2) of the National Social
Securify Fund Act.

Reserve account

The reserve account is credited with contribulions that cannot be allocated to
members, special contribuiions by non-eligible employees and amounts recovered
in form of fines and penalfies from employers that fail to remit members junds as
stipulated in the National Sccial Security Fund Act. The special contributions are
credited direclly to the reserve account while the fines and penalties are recognised
through the statement of comprehensive income and then appropriated from the
accumulated surplus/deficit 1o the reserve account. Transfers from the reserve
atg;sount require the approval of the Minister of Finance in accordance with the
NSSF Act,

Operating leases

. Leases, where a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are

{s)

retained by the lessor, are classified as operating leases. Operating lease payments
are recognised as an axpense in the surplus or deficit on a straight line basis over
the lease term.

Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of the previous financial
year. Amendments resulting from changes in standards and interpretations and
iimprovements to IFRSs to the following standards did not have any impact on the
accounting policies, financiai position or performance of the Fund except for the
amendmenis in 1AS 24 which were eariy adopted by the Fund in 2011.

» |IFRS 1 Firsk-time Adoption of international Financial Reporiing Standards
{Amendment} - 1 July 2011
IAS 24 Related party disclosures (Amendment} -- 1 January 2011

- IFRS ¥ Finansial Instruments: Disclosures (Amendment) - 1 July 2011
IFRIC 14 Prepayments of a minimum funding requiremefit {(Amendment) - i
January 2011 - :

+  Improvements to IFRSs {issued in 2011)

n.o.o®
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) | .-~

'3 SUMMARY SIGNIFICANT ACCQUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

Amendments resulting from Improvements to IFRSs to the following standards did not
have any impact on the accounting policies, financial position or performance of the
fund.

. IAS 1 Financial statement presentation {Amendment) — 1 January 2012
. 1AS 12 Income taxes (Amendment) - 1 January 2012
*  Improvements to IFRSs (Issued in 2011}

The adopﬁgn of the standards or interpretations is described balow;

IAS 1 Financial statement presentation (Amendment)

The amendment s effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2012

and requires that items of other comprehensive income be grouped in ltems that would

be reclassified to profit or loss at a future point (for example, upon derecognition or

seftlement) and items that will never be reclassified. This amendment only effects the

presentation in the financial statements and had no impact on the Fund’'s financial
- position or performance

JAS 12 Income faxes (Amendnient)

The amendment is effective for annuat periods beginning oh or after 1 January 2012
and introduces a rebuliable presumption that deferred tax on investment properties
measured at fair value will be recognised on a sale basis, unless an entity has a
business model that woukd indicate the investment property will be consumed in the
business. If consumed a use basis should be adopted. Furthemmore, it introducas the
requirement that deferred tax on non-depreciable assets that are measured using the
revaluation medel in IAS 16 always be measurad on a sale basis of the asset. This
amendment will have no impact on the Fund after initial application.

. Standards issued but not yet effective

~Standards ssued but not yet effective up to the date of issuance of the Fund’s financial
statements are listed below. This listing is of standards and interpretations issued, which
the Fund reasonably expects to be applicable at a future date. The Fund intends to
adopt those standards when they become effective, The Fund expects that adoption of
these standards, amendments and interpretations in most cases not 1o have any
significant impact on the Fund's financial position or performance in the period of initial
application but additiohal disclosures will be required. In cases where it will have an
impact the Fund is still assessing the possible impact.
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SUMMARY SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

JAS 18 Post empioyee benefits (Amendment)

The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013,
The revised standard includes a number of amendments that range from fundamental

changes to simple clarifications and re-wording. The more significant changes include
the following:

» For defined benefit plans, the ability to defer recognition of actuarial gains and
losses (i.e., the corridor approach) has been removed. As revised, amounts
recorded in profit or loss are limjted to current and past service costs, gains or
losses on settlements, and net interest income (expenss). All other changes in the
net defined benefit asset (liabilly), including actuarial gains and losses are
recognised in OC! with no subsequent recycling to profit or loss.

+ Temination benefits will be recognised at the earlier of when the offer of
terminafion cannot be withdrawn, or when the related restructuring costs are
recognised under IAS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets.

* The distinction between short-term and other long-term employee benefits will be

based on the expected timing of settlement rather than the employee’s entitfement
to the benefits.

IAS 27 Separate Financlal Statements (as revised in 2011)

As a consequence of the new IFRS 10 and IFRS 12, what remains of IAS 27 is iimited
to accounting for subsidiaries, jointly conirolled entiies, and associates in separate
financial statements. The Fund does not present separate financial statements. The
amendment becomes effective for annual perieds beginningon or after 1 January 20143.

IAS 28 Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures (as revised in 2011)

As a consequence of the new IFRS 11 and IFRS 12. 1AS 28 has been renamed |IAS 28
Investments in Associates and Joint Ventures, and describes the application of the
equity method to investments in joint ventures in addition to associates. The amendment
becomes effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013,

IAS 32 Financial. instruments: Presentation - Offsetting Financial Assets and
Financial Liabilities

The amendments clarify the meaning of ‘currently has a legally enforceable right of set-
off; and that some gross settlement systems may be considered equivalent to net
settlement. The amendments clarify that rights of set-off must not only be legally
enforceable in the normal course of business, but must also be enforceable in the event
of defauit and the event of bankruptcy or insolvency of all of the counterparties to the
contract, including the reporting entity itself. The amendments also clarify that rights of
set-off must not be contingent on a future event. The amendments are effective for

annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014 and are required to be applied
retrospectively.




1

{ NATIONAL SOCIAL SECURITYFUND  ~ ~~°
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3. SUMMARY SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT'D)

IFRS 1 time Adoption of intemnational Financial Reporting Standards
(Amendment} - Government Loans

The amendment is effective for annual pefiods beginning on or after 1 January 2013.
The IASB has added an exception fo the retrospective application of IFRS 9 Financial
Instruments {or 1AS 3¢ Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, as
applicable) and IAS 20 Accounting for -Government Grants and Disclosure of
Govemment Assistance. These amendments require first-time adopters to apply the
i dequirements of IAS 20 prospectively to govemment ioans exigting at the date of
: transition 1o IFRS. However, entities may choose to apply the requirements of IFRS 9
; (or 1AS 39, as applicable) and IAS 20 to govemment loans retrospectively if the
i information needed to do so had been obtained at the time of initially accounting for
those loans. '

The exception will give firsttime adopters relief from retrospective measurement of

!
' government loans with a below market rate of interest. As a result of not applying IFRS
; 9 {or IAS 39, as applicable) and IAS 20 retrospectively, first-ime adopters will not have

to recognise the cotresponding benefit of a below-market rate government loan as a
govemment grant.

IFRS 7 Disclosures — Offsetting Financial Assets and Financial Liabilities —
Amendments fo IFRS7

: The amendment Is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2013.
| These amendments require an entity to disclose information about rights of set-oif and
! related arrangements (e.g., collateral agreements). The disclosures would provide users
with information that is useful in evaluaing the effect of netting arrangements on an
entity's financial position. The new disclosures are required for all recognised financial
instruments that are set off in accordance with 1AS 32 Financial Instruments:
Presentation. The disclosures also apply to recognised financial instruments that are
subject to an enforceable master netting arrangement or ‘similar agreement’,
! irrespective of whether they are set off in accordance with |AS 32.

IFRS 9 for financial assets was first published in November 2009 and was updated
in October 2010 to include financial liabilities.

These pronouncements initially required the adoption of the standard for annual perieds
on or after 1 January 2013. Amendments to IFRS 9 Mandaftory Effective Date of IFRS 9

‘ and Transition Disclosures, issued in December 2011, moved the mandatory effective
i date of both the 2009 and 2010 versions of IFRS 9 from 1 January 2013 to 1 January

2015,
IFRS 9is being developed in phas_;es with a view to replacing IAS 39 in its entirety.
Phase 1 of IFRS 9 addressed the classification and measurement of financial assets. Al
financial assets are measured at fair value atinitial recognition.

Debt instruments may, if the fair value option (FVO} is not invoked, be subsequently
measured at amortised cost if:

« The asset is held within # business model that has the objective to hoki the assets to

collect the contractual cash flows; and
: « The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise, on specified dates, to cash
' flows that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal outstanding.
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SUMMARY SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONT’D)

‘All other debt instruments are subsequenty measured at fair value.

All equity investment financial assels are measured at fair value either through other
comprehensive income (OCH} or profit or loss. Equity instruments held for trading must
be measured at fair vatue through profit or loss. Enfities have an irrevocable choice of
recognising changes in fair value either in OCI or profit or loss by instrument for all other
equity investment financial assets.

Phase 2 of IFRS 9 addressed the classifi cation and measurement of financial liabilijes,
All financial assels are measyred at fair value at initial recognition.

For FVO liabiliies, the amount of change in the fair value of a liability that is attributable
to changes in credit risk must be prasented in OCI. The remainder of the change in fair
value is pregented in profit or loss, unless presentation of the fair value change in
respect of the liability's credit risk in OC] would create or enlarge an accounting
mismatch in profit or loss.

All other IAS 39 classification and measurement requirements for financial liabilities
have been carried forward into IFRS 9, including the embedded derivalive separation
rules and the criteria for using the FVO.

The Board’s work on the other phases is ongoing, and includes impairment of financia)
instruments and hedge acoounting,

The adoption of the first phase of IFRS9 will primarily have an effect on the
classification and measurement of the Fund’s financial assets but will potentially have
no impact on classification and measurements of financial liabilities. The Fund is
currently assessing the impact of adopting IFRS 9, however, the impact of adoption
depends on the assets held by the Fund at the date of adoplion, it is not practical to
quantify the effect.

IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements, IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements; IFRS 12
Disclosure of Interest in Other Entities.

IFRS 10 replaces the portion of IAS 27 Consolidated and Separate Finandial
Statements that addresses the accounting for consolidated finarcial statements. it also
includes the issues raised in SIC 12 Consclidation — Special Purpose Entities. IFRS 10
establishes a single controt model with a new and broader definition of control that
applies to all entities. It does not change consolidation procedures but rather whether an
entity is consolidated. The changes will require management to make significant
judgement to determine which entites are controlled and therefore reguired to be
consolidated by the parent. Therefore, IFRS 10 may change which entities are within a
Group.

IFRS 11 replaces IAS 31 Interest in Joint Ventures and SIC 13 Jointly Controlled
Entities — Non-monetary Contributions by Ventures. IFRS 11 uses some of the terms
that were used in IAS 31 but with different meanings which may create some confusion
as to whether there are significant changes. IFRS 11 focuses on the nature of the rights
and cobligations arising from the arrangement compared to the legal form in JAS 31.
IFRS 11 uses the principle of control in IFRS 10 to determine joint control which may
change whether joint control exists. IFRS 11 addresses .only two forms of joint
arrangements; joint operations where the entity recognises its assels, liabilities,
revenues and expenses andier ifs refative share of those items anid joint ventures which

. s accounted for on the equity method (no more proportional consolidation).
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IFRS 12 includes all the disclosures that were previously required relating to an
entity’s interests in subsidiaries, joint arangements, associates and structured
entities as well as extensive gualitafive and quantitative new disclosures. The new
disclosure requirements are 1o help the users of financial statements understand:

» The effects of an entity’s interests in other entities on its financial position,
financial performance and cash flows;

» The nature of, and the risks associated with, the entity’s interest in other
entities; and ' .

« An entity is now required to disclose the judgements made to determine
whether it controls another entity.

The Fund will need to consider the new definition of control to determine which entities
are cohtrofled or jointly controlled and then to account for them under the new
standards. IFRS 10, 11 and 12 will be effective for the Fund 1 July 2013.

IFRS 10 Consolidated Financial Statements; \FRS 12 Disclosure of Interest in
Other Entities; |AS 27 Separate Financlal Statements — Investment entities

{Amendment)

The amendment is effective for annual pericds beginning on or after 1 January 2014,
The investment entities amendments apply to investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures
and associates held by a reporting entity that meets the definition of an investment
entity.

The exception to consolidafion requires investment entities to account for subsidiaries at
fair value through profit or loss in accordance with IFRS 9 {or 1AS 38, as applicable),
except for investments in subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures that provide
services that relate only to the investment entity, which must be consalidated
(investments in subsidiaries) or accounted for using the equity method {investments in
associates or joint ventures).

IFRS 13 Fair Value Measurement

.

IFRS 13 establishes a single framework for all fair value measurement (financial and

non-financial assets and liabilities) when fair value is required or pemmitted by IFRS.
[FRS 13 does not change when an entity is required to use fair value but rather
describes how to measure fair value under IFRS when it is permitted or required by
IFRS. There are also consequential amendments to other standards to delete specific
requirements for determining fair value. Fair value under IFRS 13 is defined as "the
price that would be recsived to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date” (i.e., an ‘exit price’).
New disclosures related to fair value measurements are also required to help users
understand the valuation techniques and inputs used to develop. fair value
measurements and the effect of fair value measurements on profit or loss.

The Fund wilt need to consider the new requirements to detemmine fair values going
forward. IFRS 13 will be effective for the Fund from 1 July 2013.
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IFRIC 20, Stripping Costs in the Production Phase of a Surface Mine

This new interpretation provides guidance on how to account for stripping cost in the
development phase of a surface mine. If the benefit from the stripping activity will be
realised in the current period, an enfily is required to account for the shipping activity
costs as part of the cost of inveniory. When the benefit is the improved access to ore,
the entity recognises these costs as a non-current asset, only if certain criteria are met.
This s referred 1o as the ‘stripping activily asset. The stripping activity asset is
accounted for as an addition to, or as an enhancement of, an existing asset and
depreciated on a uhit.of production basis unless another method is more approprigie.

After inftial recognition, the stripping activity asset is carried at its cost or revalued
amount less depreciation or amortisation and less impairment losses, The interpretation
is effective for annual periods beginning onor after 1 January 2013,

IFRIC 21, Levies

This new interprefation clarifies the accounting for levies imposed by govemments by
the entity that is paying the levy. The scope of the interpretation is broad and covers all
levies, except outflows that are in the scope of IAS 12 and penalties for breaches of
legistation.

The amendment is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014.

Improvements to IFRSs ~ 2009 — 2011 Cycle (issued in 2012 effective for annual
periods beginning onor after 1 January 2013)

» [IFRS 1 First-time Adoption of Intemational Financial Reporting Standards
(Amendments):
o Repeated application of IFRS 1 - clarifies that an entity that has stopped
applving IFRS may choose to either:

(i} Re-apply IFRS 1, aven if the entity applied IFRS 1 in a previous reporting
period; or

(i) Apply IFRS retrospectively in accordance with I1AS 8 {i.e., as if it had
never stopped applying IFRS) in order to resume reporting under IFRS. If
the entity re-applies IFRS 1 or applies IAS 8, it must disclose the reasons
why it previously stopped applying [FRS and subsequently resumed
reporting in accordance with IFRS. |

o Bomowing costs - clarifies that, upon adoption of IFRS, an enfity ihat
capitalised borrowing costs in accordance with its previous GAAP, may carry
forward, without adjustment, the amount previously capitalised in its opening
statement of financial posilion at the date of transition. Once an entity adopts
IFRS, borrowing costs are recognised in accordance with IAS 23, including
those incurred on qualifying assets under construction.

+ |AS 1 Presentation of Financial Stalements (Amendments). The amendment
clarifies the difference between voluntary additional comparative information and
the minimum required comparative information. Generally, the minimum required
comparative periodis the previous period.
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+ 1AS 18 Property, Plant and Equipment {Amendment). The amendment claiifies
that major spare parts and servicing equipment that meet the definition of
property, plant and equipment are not inventory. .

¢ IAS.32 Financial Instruments: Presentation. The amendment removes existing
income. tax requirements from IAS 32 and requires entities to apply the
requirements in 1AS 12 to any income tax arising from distributions 1o equity
holders.

+ JAS 34 Interim Financial Reporting The amendment clarifies the requirements in
IAS 34 relating to segment information for total assefs and liabiiities for each
reportable segment to enhance consistency with the requirements in IFRS 8
Operating Segmenls. Total assets and liabilties for a particular reporiable
'segment need to be disclosed only when the amounts are regularly provided to
the chief operating dscision maker and there has been a material change in the
total amount disclosed in the enfity's previous annual financial statements for

that reportable segment.

Implementation project

In addition to the major IFRS projects, the IASE also has a number of items on its work
plan dealing with implementation issues. These include namrow scope amendments and
interpretations. Below is a listing of the current implementation projects based on the
IASB’s work plan as at 21 June 2013, as well as those that have been completed since
the March 2013 edition of the pocketbook guide.

IAS 36 Recoverable Amount Disclosures for Non-Financial Assets (Amendments}

The amendments relate to the disclosure in respect of fair value less costs of disposal.
The amendments are -intended to clarfy the IASB's original intentions when
amendments were made to I1AS 36 as a result of the issuance of IFRS 13 Fair Value

Measurement.

The amendments also require additional information about the fair value measurement
of impaired assets when the recoverable amount is based on fair value less costs of
disposal and te discount rates that have beenused when the recoverable amount.

The amendment is effective for annuat pericds beginning on or after 1 January 2014.

IAS 39 Novation of Derivatives and Continuation of Hedge Accounting
{Amendments)

The IASB amended }AS 39 1o provide relief from discontinuing hedge accounting when
novation of a derivative designated as a hedging instrument meets cerfain criteria.
Novation indicates that parties to a contract agree o replace their eriginal counterparty

with a new one.
The amendment Is effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2014.

40




NATIONAL SOCIAL SECURITY FUND
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

4. DETERMINATION OF FAIR VALUE

The fair value of both financialmonfinancial assets and fair values have been
detemined for measurement and/or disclosure purposes based on the methods below.

(i Investment properties

The Fund uses an external independent valuaion company with recognized
professional qualification experience and values the Fund's investment properties after
every three years (previously on an annual basis). The fair values are based on the
market conditions being the estimated amount for which the property could be
exchanged on the date of valuation between a willing buyer and seller at an amm’s length
fransaction. In the absence of an active price in an active market,'the values are
prepared by consideting the aggregate of the estimated cash fiows expected {0 be
received from renting out the property. The yield that reflects the specific risks inherent
in the net cash flows then is applied to the net annual cash flows to amive at the property
valuation.

(i} Investment in debt and equify securilies

The fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss, held-to-maturity
investments and available for sale is determined by reference to their guoted bid price at
the reporiing date. The fair value of held to maturity investments is determined for
disclosure purposes only. :

(iif) Trade and other receivables

The fair vaiue of trade and other raceivables is estimaled as the present value of future
cash flows, discounted at the market rate of interest at the reporting date. The fair value
of rade and other receivables is determined at initial recognition and for disclosure
purposes only.

N
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KATIONAL SOCIAL SECURITY FUND -
HOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

5. INTEREST INCOME

Interest income on short term deposits with banks
Interest income on govemment bonds: held-to-maturity
Interest income on treasury bills: held-to-maturity
Interest income on call deposits made by fund managers
Interest incoms on corporate bonds: held-to-maturity
LI Interest income on loans measured at amortized cost

6. RENTAL INCOME

Workers’ House
Social Security House
Cthers

in tha tenancy agreements.
7. DIVIDEND INCOME

Stanbic Bank Uganda Limited

Bank of Baroda (Uganda) Limited

New Vision Printing and Publishing Company Limited
DFCU Limited

Safaricom Kenya Public Limited Company

Umeme Limited

Other dividend ncome samed from fund managers

8. OTHER OPERATING INCOME
(Loss)/Gain on disposal of property and equipment
Gain on disposal of investment property
Clearance foes
Miscellaneousincome
Gains in investments with fund managers
Decrease in provision for bad and doubtful debts
Litigation provisions no longer required
Fines and penalies
Foreign exchange gain/(loss)
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2013 2012
Ushs 000  Ushs 000
118,284,715 109,119,230
239,535,558 139,375,496
- 451,089

17,233 196,416
7,707,376 6,832,600
8,302.924 _ 8,482.804
373.847.806 264457.635
5,955,584 5,826,421
2,097,564 2,306,081
206,803 143,562
$.259.951 8.276.064

20132
Ushs 000
1,308,716

99,913
525,000
546,896

2,376,547
1,975,842
1.141.411

1,974,425

{56,170)
10,412
1,054,610
8,784,073

46,498,160

928,130

This relates to rental income eamed from investment properties (refer to Note 25) owned
by the Fund, and rented out to tenants for commercial purposes. Tenants are charged
rental fees based on the square metres occupied at an agreed rental charge as specified

2012
Ushs 000
.931,801
79,930
450,000
546,996
1,624,844

28,759
2662420

1,346,305
511,500
10,810
294,258
4,112,259
2,506,340
267,561
(3.106,922)

t
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" NATIGNAL SOCIAL SECURITY FUND
- NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {CONTINUED)

10.

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Staff costs (note 9 a)

Staff medical insurance

General staff and training expenses
Advertising & promotion

Audit expenses

Bank charges and commission -

. Board experses

Cleaning expenses

IT connectivity & internet
Directors’ allowances
Professional fees

Legal fees

Motor vehicle fuel costs, maintenance & repairs
Printing & stationery
Subscriptions _
Telephone, fax, telex & post
Travel and subsistence costs
Comimission & brokerage fees
URBAA Annual levy

Other administrative expenses

Staff costs

Leave pay

Cvertime expenses

Salaries and wages

Social security contributions

Defined contribution plan pension cost
Teminalfretirement benefits

OTHER OPERATING EXPENSES

Rent and rates

Electricity and water

Repairs and maintenance
Insurance

Security expenses

Research and library expenses -
Provision for bad debis

2013 2012
Ushs 000 Ushs 000
28,951,693 25,421,993
839,623 875,804
1,130,788 947,174
3,024,555 1,224 378
140,400 156,355
8,216 29,073
¢ 234,056 61,792
232,435 316,910
584,221 496,024
394,803 275,350
490,518 622287
3,700,885 779,365
628,281 578,193
454,814 320,908
245,200 256,092
428,079 - 401,862
1,504,111 1,983,577
231,357 -
237,500 -
41,363 522510
43,502,808 35,260 737
351232 397.246
23.465 237675
23675535 19,415439
2574014 3,046,660
1,797.097 1,785513
520850 539451
28,951,693 25,421,993
3,820,215 3,300425
4,350,322 618,944
4,014,433 3,229,379
812,173 871,619
580,576 615,584
132,855 127,405
1.4,540,885 -
28,260,559

8,862,356




NATIGNAL SOCIAL SECURITY FUND

NOTESTO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

1.

12,
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SURPLUS BEFORE TAX

The following items have been chargedf(credited) in arriving at the surplus before tax:

Depreciation of property and equipment (note 27)
Amortization of intapgible assets (note 26)
(Loss)Gain on disposal of property and equipment
Gain on disposal of investment property
Auditors’ remuneration |

Directors’ emoluments

Decrease in provision for legal costs -

Provision for interest on Alcon International case
Fair value gains/{losses) from equity instruments
Fair value gains oh investment properly
Provision for bad and doubtful debis

Linrealised foreign exchange losses

Reversal of impaimnent loss on frade receivables

TAX
Income tax expense

Withholding tax on interest income

2013
Ushs 000

1,939,865
1,666,223
{56,170)
140,400
304,803
46,498,160

33,725,285

17,640,985
(13,489,586)

69,616,573

2012
Ushs 000

5,495,845
1,497,087
1,346,305

511,500
113,565
275,350
2,506,340
2,486,373
(17.078.324)
57,951,140

7,333,949
[4,112,259)

37,462,230

The tax on the Fund's surplus after interest to member’s funds differs from the
theoretical amount that would arise using the basic tax rate of 30% as follows:

Surplus for the year before tax

Tax calculated at 30%
Tax effect of expenses not deductible for
tax purposes

Tax effect of allowable expenses
Withholding tax deducted at source

2013
Ushs 000

412916475

123,874,943

27,480,506
(12,122,302)
69,616,573
69,616,573

2011
Ushs 600

276,299603

82,889,881

10,622,768
(18,588,189)
{37.462.230)
37,462,230
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NATIONAL SOCIAL SEGURITY FUND
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS [CONTINUED)

12,

13.
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_ ‘TAX (CONTINUED)

Deferred tax asset :
Deferred tax is calculated on all temporary differences under the liability method using the
principal tax rate of 30% (2012: 30%]}.

‘ At 1 July Movement At 38 June

2012  fortheyear 2013
_ Ushs 000 Ushs 000 Ushs 000
Accelerated tax allowances - ¢ 3,177,861 (403,196} 2,774,665
Unrealized foreign exchange losses (1,682,517) (3,437,656) (5,120,173)
Provision for impairment loss on trade '
and other receivables {1,230'652) {5,262,295) {6.492,947)
Fair value gains on investment
properties 63,994,378 - 63,094,378
Fair value changes on equity .
insfruments 18,812,268 10,117,585 28,929,853
Tax losses carried forward {94.832.651) 42 591 {93,890,060)
Net deferred tax asset (11761313) 1957020  {9.804.284)

The net deferred tax asset of Ushs 8.8 hilion (2011: Ushs 11 billion) has not been
-recognised in these financial statements due to the uncertainty in recovery of the asset.
Despite the Fund making surplus earnings, the Fund obtained a nding from Uganda
‘Revenue Authority in 2001 advising that interest paid to members is tex deductible.
However, as disclosed in Note 35 (b}, the Fund received a notice of assessment for
corporation tax of Ushs 49.7 billion from Uganda Revenue Authority in which the interest
paid to members was disallowed. The Fund objected to the assessment and is yet to
receive feedback from URA following its response to the assessment raised. As such, the
Fund has maintained its earlier treatment in interest paid to members on the basis of the
2001 communication recelved from URA unfil such a time a resolution is reached on the
assessment raised by URA.

2013 2012
CASH AND BANK BALANCES Ushs 000 Ushs 000
Barclays Bank of Uganda Limited 691,005 491,344
Citibank Uganda Limited 1,695,422 7,293,830
Housing Finance Uganda Limited (Note 34) 119,086 772,805
Stanbic Bank Uganda Limited 2,520,700 5,657,056
Standard Chartered Bank Uganda Limited 9,160,840 2,699,919
imperial Bank : 16,979 -
Eco Bank . ‘ 71,647
Bank of Africa 189,705 -
Crane Bank ) 36,074 -
Centenary Bank 146,607 -
DFCU Bank 200,988 -
United Bank of Afiica 84,892 -
Orient Bank 198,667 -
Global Trust Bank 61,763 .
Tropical Bank: 10,370 -
‘Bank of Baroda 136,756 -
Cash at hand 26,171 598,056
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NATIONAL SOCIAL SECURITY FUND
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STAT

44. DEPOSITS WITH COMMERGIAL BANKS

ABC bank

Bank of Africa

Barclays Bank of Uganda Limited
Bank of Baroda Uganda Limited
Bank of India

Cairo Interational Bank Limited -
Globat TriistBank Limited

Crane Bank Limited

DFCU Bank Limited

Diamond Trust Bank Uganda Limited
Housing Finance Bank Limited (Note 34}
Orient Bank Uganda Limited

" Stanbic Bank Uganda Limited

Standard Chartered Bank Uganda Limited
Tropical Bank Limited

United Bank of Africa

Equity Bank Uganda Limited

FinaBank Uganda Limited

EcoBank Uganda Limited

Imperial Bank Limited

KGB Bank Uganda Limited

The above is analysed as follows:

Amounts due within three {3) months
Amounts due after three (3) months

EMENTS (CONTINUED)

15.376,671

2013
Ushs 000
6,237,304

135,223,643
1,074,625
10,937,923

- 225,291,785

99,605,010
18,782,031
38,122,698
63,935,735
31,721,471
22,886,833
12,639,210

16,623132

9,761,977
38110818
731.954,005

220,860,570
511,093,525

131,954,095

17414010

2012
Ushs 000

19,794,297
36,007,240
81,877,348
2032417

t 7,803,300
217,085,558
44 449,523
41,197,447
31,908,779
39,731,995
3,036,678
52,272,160
17,321,491
10,041,164
34,994,687
9,264,364
10,130,690
5,079,865
22,022 260

886,151,323

329,552,951
356,698,372

686,151,323

The deposits are at amortised cost. The deposits are made for varying pericds of
between one day and 365 days depending on the cash requirements of the Fund. The
weighted average effective interest rate on deposits with commercial banks as at 30

June 2013was 17% (2012:10%)

EQUITY SECURITIES HELD-FOR-TRADING

Uganda Securities Exchange

Nairobi Steck Exchange
Dar es Salaam Stock Exchange

L

2013

Ushs 000
6,094,008
25,965,249
3,254,070

35,313,327

2012
Ushs 000
4,400,018

15,170,547
1,290 864

20870429

The investments in securities held-for-trading are equity investments managed by the
Fund's invesiment managers, Stantib and Pinebridge Investments. The invesiment

managers have the mandate to make investments at their discretion but in
compliance with the Fund’s investment policy.
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NATIONAL SOCIAL SECURITY FUND
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT]NUED)

16.

17.

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES : 2013
: : Ushs 000
Prepayments 878,853
Staff advarces 838,930
Withholding tax recoverable ' -
Trade receivables 7,926,082
Contributions receivable 1,021,943
Rent receivable 2,765,223
VAT recoverable 1,099,558
Cash advances to investment manag ers 1,735,733
Dividends receivable 6,390,908
Provisions for impairment loss {6412.811)
16,244417
Provisions for impairment loss is analysed as follows:-
As at 1 July 4,102,173
Provisions created during the year 2,310,638
Provisions no longer required : -
As at 30 June : 6,41238M11

Chargel/(Credit) to the statement of comprehensive income:
Net increasef{decrease} in provision for

impairment loss 2310638
INVESTMENTS IN SECURITIES HELD-TO-MATURITY
Ushs
2613
Treasury bonds 1,922,181,862
Corperate bonds 67,243 848
1.990,125,710
The Investments are analysed as follows:
Maturing within 3 months 102,615,696
Maturing after 3 months but within 1 year 353,308,202
Maturing after 1 year 1,527,201,812
1.890,125.710

2012

Ushs 000
1,102,658
952,733
3425,512
12,956,877
1,021,943
1,780,598
3,611,728
1,842,345

(4,102,173)
22,592,219

8,214,432

(4.112,259)
4102175

(4.112.259))

Ushs
2012

1,334,690,056

51,604,632
1.386.204.688

99,232,998
146,890,072

1140171618

1.386.294,688

The yield rates on the treasury bonds ranged from 9.25% to 14.50% (2012: 10% to
11%) and the ireasury bonds malure in 2 to 20 years. The interest rates for corporate
bonds ranged from 11.5% to 17% {2012: 11. 5% to 17%) and the corporate bonds

mature in 1 to 9 years.
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18. EQUITY INVESTMENTS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH PROFIT ORLOSS

% held - 2013 2012

- Ushs 000 Ushs 000

Bank of Baroda (Ugandza) Limited 200 5,004,750 3,896,588

DFCU Limited . 5.93 15,186,144 14,743,829

Safaricom Kenya Public Co. Ltd 0.60 48,818,507 25,095,900

 Centum Investments Limited ‘ 0.73 2,785,200 1,685,200

Stanbic Bank Uganda Limited 1.72 24,703,504 23,870,170
New Vision Prinfing and Publishing .

Company Limited 19.6 9,075,000 9,600,000

Umeme 8.12 47,288475 -

163.8561.580 . 78.201.687

All the above equity investments are fraded on the Uganda -Secuﬁty Exchange (USE)
except for Safaticom which is traded on the Nairobi Stock Exchange (NSE). The trading
prices at the last date of trading for the years ended 30 June 2013 and 2012 was as

follows:
_ Gurrency 2013 2012
Bank of Baroda (Uganda) Limited Ushs 120 195
DECU Limited Ushs 1,030 1,000
Safaricom Kenya PCL S Kshs 6.55 3.45
Stanbic Bank Uganda Limited Ushs 2B 25
Centum nvestments Limited Ushs 633 383
New Vision Printing and Publishing
Company Limited Ushs 605 600
UMEME Ushs 359 -
The change in the equity investments during the year was as follows:
2013 2012
Ushs 000 Ushs 000
At1 July 78,291,687 893,470,739
Acquisition of new shares 37,620,100 1,346,846
Bonus issue 3,596,850 19,249,336
Disposal of shares - -
Change in fair value 33,725,285 (17,078,324)
Foreign exchange losses 617,658 (18,686 910)
. At30June 153,851,680  _78.291.887

The Fund’s investment in equities that are designated at fair value through profit or loss
represent eguities for which there is an active market and where the Fund holds less than
20 percent of the voting rights of the investee companies.
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NATIGNAL SOCIAL SECURITY FUND
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {CONTINUED)

19.

2012

LOANS AND ADVANCES 2013
-Ushs 000 Ushs 000
OFCU Limited 1,500,000 2,500,000
Uganda Clays Limited (Note 34) 15,219,768 12,316,773
Housing Finance Bank Limited (Note 34) 40,727,357 43,560,238
Staff inans 3.072,180 3,667,812
60,519,305 62,044,823
Provision for Uganda Clays Ltd loan (15,219,768) -
' ' 45,200,537 £2.044,823

The loan to DFCU Limited is unsecured and attracts an interest rate equivalent to the 182-
day treasury bilt weighted average rate pius 2% per annum currently at 17% (2012: 17%)
subject to an automatic review where the treasury bill rates rise above 20% or fall below
5%. The principal and interest are repayable semi-annually.

The lpan te Uganda Ciays Limited is unsecured and is repayable within 96 months in equal
monthly instalments commencing after a grace period of two years {effective 27 December
2013). The loan has a fixed interest rate of 15%.

Housing Finance Bank Limited has two loan facilities with the Fund of Ushs 25 billion at a
rate of 11.5% and Ushs 22.5 billion of 15.5% (2012: 15.5%) respectively. The loan of Ushs
25 billion is repayable over a pericd of 15 years while that of Ushs 22.5 billion is repayable
over 10 years. Instalments are due on a quarierly basis after a grace period of 24 months
from the date of the first disbursement. During the grace period, interest accrued is
payable, The loans are secured by the bank's property on Plot 25, Kampala Road and
identifiable and performing condominium mortgage book portfolic worth at least Ushs 10
billions of present and future assets representing 25% of the loan sum for the duration of the
loan agreement. i addition, 2 lien imposed at all times on the government securities owned

and held by the bank with a total value of at least Ushs 10 billion representing 25% of the

foan sum. The reported amount represents the carrying amount as at 30 June 2013.

The staff loans are loans issued by the Fund to its employees at a discounted interest rate
of 6.5% (2012: 6.5%). The loans are issued to employees fo acquirefconstruet houses. The
loans are secured by the acquired houses and are to be paid over a period of 15 to 20
years. The gross staff loans at the discounted interest rate of 5% are Ushs 3.7 billion. As at
30 June 2013, the impact on the gross amounts if the loans were advanced at prevailing
market rates of interest for similar instruments with similar credit ratings was equivalent to
Ushs 1.36 billion (2012: Ushs 2.6 billion). The fair value of the steff loans at prevailing
maiket rates of interest for similar instruments at 30 June 2013 was equivalent to Ushs 1.71
billion {2012: Ushs 1.1 billien).

All the above loans and advances are measured at amortised cost. Management assessed
all loans outstanding as at 30 June 2013 for indicators of impairment and determined that
no loans exhibited signs of irnpairment and as such no provision for impairment loss has
been made with exception of the Uganda Clays Lean which has been fully provided for.
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NATIONAL SOCIAL SECURITYFUND .~ \
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL, STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

20.  INVENTORIES

2013 2012
Ushs 000 Ushs 000
Inventories : 4.626 7.692
This relates to consumables and stationery maintained by the Fund for day to day '
operations.
21. NON-CURRENT ASSETS HELD FOR SALE !
: 2013 2012

Ushs 000 Ushs 000

At30 June 256,200 256,280

Leasehold land held in Gulu, Hoima, Masaka and Mbarara was transferred from prepaid
operating Jand lease rentals to non-current assets held for sale following a Board decision

to dispose of the properties.
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NOTES TO THE FINANGIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

23. OTHER INVESTMENTS , 2013 2012

- Ushs 000  Ushs 000
Vicioria Properties Development Limited —_— 10.300

24,
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GNAL SOCIAL SECURITY FUND

Victoria Properties Development Limited (VPDL) was incorporated in 2004 to develop the -

Fund's property at Lubowa for sale to the public. NSSF holds a 50% equily interest in VPDL,
through its wholly owned subsidiary, Premier Developments Ltd (PDL). VPDL borrowed US$ 1
million from Premier Developments Limited to finance its preliminary aclivities. VPDL entered
into a confract for the design and supervision of the Lubowa Housing Project with M/s SBI, ata
contract price of US$ 4.9 million, and paid the 1S% 1 million borrowed from PDL fo SBI to
deliver preliminary designs. VPDL delivered an account as to how the loan was utilised, and
the Board of Directors authorised a write off of the said loan. A VPDL company Annual General
Meeting held in July 2008 approved the annual reports and financial statements for the years
2005-2007, audited by PKF. In 2009, the sharehoiders of VPDL agreed to wind up the joint
venture company and instead have an anmn’s length contract for design and supervision of the
Lubowa Housing Project. The winding up/dissolution agreements and amm's length
design/supervision contract have beensigned.

CAPITAL WORK-IN-PROGRESS {CWIP)

Arua Lubowa  Other Total
Ushs

Ushs 000 Ushs 000 000 Ushs 000
Cost
At 30 June 2012 2,330,000 - - 2,330,000
Addifions - 12,611,326 65,076 12,676,401
Transfer from investment properiies - 223,000,000 - 223,000,000
At 30 June 2013 2.330,000 235611,325 65076  235,006.401
Provision for impaimient
At1July 2012/30 June 2013 (2,330,000} - - {2.330.000)
Net carrying amount
At 30 June 2013 - 235611325 ©5.076 .235,676.401

At 30 June 2012 = - - -

The Arua capital work-in-progress relates to costs incurred in creation of a joint venture with
the trustees of Arua Golf Club in order fo construct a hotel at the golf course. As at 30 June
2009, construction of the hotel was near completion but modalities of share of interest in the
hote! had not been finalized with the trustees of the golf club. The Fund has estimated to incur
losses as a result of the delayed implementation of this jeoint venture and ownership shucture
of the joint venture. Management is currently negotiating with the trustees of golf club with a
view of finalizing the joint venture. However management is not certain when the final
documentation creating the joint venture will be finalized. Due to uncertainties surrounding the
recoverability of these amounts, the balance was fully impaired and recognised in the
statement of comprehensive income in 2008.

During the year, the Fund commenced development of the Lubowa Land and has contracted
Soleh Boneh Intemational (SB1) Holdings AG Uganda as project designer and supervisor for
the Lubowa Housing Project. Consequently, all iand previously recognised as. investment
property has been reclassified as capital work in progress. The housing units will be
reclassified to inventory on completion.
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NATIONAL SOCIAL SECURITY FUND L
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

26. INTANGIBLE ASSETS

2013 2012
Ushs 000 Ushs 000
Cost
At 1 July _ : 18,572,573 14,508,297
Additions 12,266 1467811
Transfer from capital work-in-progress - 1,057,326
Reclassification from computer equipment and '
fittings - 1,539,139
At 30 June - 18,584,839 18,572573
H
Amortisation
At July 8,603,763 6,339,867
Reclassification from computer equipmentand
fitings : - £66,809
Charge for the year 1,666,223 1,497.087
At 30 June : 10,169.986 8,503,763
Net cairying amount _ - 8414863  10,068810

Intangible assets relate to software which makes up the Integrated Management
Information System {(IMIS} of the Fund.
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NOTES TO THE FINANCIA

NATIONAL SOCIAL SEGURITY FUND

28.  WITHHOLDING TAX PAYABLE

29,

30.

Withholding tax payabie

L STATEMENTS {CONTINUED)

e ke 4 ) e o s e e i Y = = e 4

/

2013
Ushs 000

901,895

2012
Ushs 000

901,899

This relates to withholding tax withheld from suppliers and consuitants which is payable

{o Uganda Revenue Authority.

OTHER PAYABLES

Accounts payable
Accrual for legal costs
Alcon retention payable
Deferred income

Other payables

The accrual for legal costs is analysed as follows:

At 1 July

Payments made during the year
Decrease in accrual during the year
At 30 June

2013
Ushs 000

12,181,357
6,810,744
1,202,310
3,460

20197871

2013
Ushs 000
11,937,811
(219,377)

(4,907.690) .

6810744

2012

Ushs 009

3,800,230
11,937,811
1,202,310
18,298
394,317

17,353,026

2012
Ushs 000

14,746,140

(301,989)
2,506,340

1,937,811

The accrual for legal costs relates to fees for the former lawyers who were handling the
ongoing Alcon case disclosed in Note 30. The accruais are based on the fee notes
raised by the former lawyers. The fee nates have been referred to court for assessment

of reasonableness before they can be paid.

PROVISIONS FOR LITIGATION
Alcon International Limited

At 1 July

Interest payable

Foreign exchange losses/{gains)
Reversal of provision

Provision

At 30 June

On 21 July 1994 National Social Security Fund (NSSF
{Micon), a company incorporated in the Repupiic' of Kenya,
srect a building on land located on plot 1 Pilkington Road, Kampala

41,580,470

(41,500,470)
9,239,702

- 2239702

41,877,198
2,486 373
(2,773,101)

41,590,470

} and ‘Alcon International Limited
entered into 2 building contract to
(*the site”) at the contract

price of USD 16,160,000. In addition, the parties signed a co-financing agreerent by which
Alcon agreed to lend NSSF USD 8,080,000 in the form of malerials, workmanship and
labour. On 8" June 1996, the parfies signed an additional agreement to carry out
“improvement works” for an addilional sum of USD 9,066,917. o - )

g
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NATIONAL SOCIAL SECURITY FUND -

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

30.

3.

- PROVISIONS FOR LITIGATION (CONTINUED)

NSSF alleged defauit on the terms of the contract by Alcon and construction of all the works
contemplated by the contract was not completed. NSSF terminated the contract on 15 May
1098 NSSF due to breaches by Alcon. Consequently, on 30" November 1998, Alcon filed
Civil Suit No.1255 of 1998 against NSSF seeking general damages for breach of contract.
The High Court stayed the suit and refesred the dispute to arbitration.

On 29" March 2001, the arbitrator awarded Alcon USD 8,858,470 and interest at 6% per
annum. NSSF were dissatisfied with the award and filed an objection in the High Court under
Misc. Application No. 417 of 2001 sesking to set it aside. On 30™ September 2003, the High
Court dismissed the objection. NSSF filed a Civil Appeal No.2 of 2004 in the Court of Appeal
which was also dismissed with costs on 25" August 2009. NSSF then filed Civil Appeal No.
15 of 2008 in the Supreme Court against the decision of the Court of Appeal.

During the previous year, the Fund adopted a new litigation sirategy, introduced new grounds
of appeal and also instructed new lawyers fo conduct the case. In February 2013, the
Supreme Court delivered a landmark judgment setting aside the arbitration award, and
ordered that the case be tried afresh in the High Court.

Management is of the opinion the claim has no chance of success owing to the Supreme
Courts findings of fraud and lack of a cause of aetion for breach of contract which are binding
on the High Court. The High Court trial will therefore be formality. The provision hitherto
made for that liability was accordingly reversed. However, a provision of USD 3,653,731 as
at 307 June 2013 was made in the financial statements for works performed by Alcon that
had not been settled by the Fund. '

in a related development, the East African Court of Justice has also dismissed Alcon's suit
against Standard Chartered Bank seeking to enforce the bank guarantee that NSSF had
deposited with Court as security for the arbitration award.

ACCUMULATED MEMBERS’ FUNDS

57

2013 2012
Ushs 000 Ushs 000
At1July 2,621,222,866 2,071,024.274
Contributions received during the year 552,683,614 472,861,120
Transfer {o reserve account (Note 33 {b}) - {24,592 500)
Interest received on arrears 7,324,349 6,341,693
$1.23% interest (2012: 10%) ** 281,397,243 196,964,777
Members fund fiability before benefit
payments 3,462,628,072 2,722,599,364
Benefits paid during the year
Age benefits (47,738,802) (38,709.099)
Withdrawal benefits {35,328,891) (24,163,544)
Exempted employee benefits {15,895,893) (15,456,556}
‘nvalidity benefits {11,475,425) (7,567905) -
Survivers benefits (6,241 868) (3,0383822)
Emigration grant benefits {23,370.966) {12,440572)
_ Total benefits payments 140,051,845 (101,376,498}
At 30 June 3322576227  2621.222866
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NATIONAL SOCIAL SECURITY FUND

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED) -

31.

32,

-:gmcumumTEn MEMBERS’ FUNDS (CONTINUED}

“* This represents Interest payment to members as declared by the Minister in
Accordance with section 35 {2) of the National Social Security Fund Act, (Cap 222).
For the year ended 30 June 2013, the Minister for Finance, Planning & Economic
Development approved an interest rate of 11.23% (2012: 10%) to be calculated and
added fo the members' funds.

RESERVES
a) Special contributions, fines and penalties

in accordance with Section 13 (1) and Section 14 (1) of the National Social Security
Fund Act, (Cap 222), special contributions by non-eligible employees and fines and
penalties recovered from employers that fail to remit members funds as stipulated in
the Act are credited to a reserve account. During the year, management recovered
Ushs 2,500 million (2012: Ushs 1,892 million) in special contribufions and fines and
penalties and credited it to the reserve account. The fines and penalties are
recognised in the statement of comprehensive income and then appropriated from the
accumulated surplus/(deficit) to the reserve account.

_ 2013 2012
b} Unallocated members’ contributions Ushs 000 Ushs 000
At1 July 24,592,500 -
Transfer from accumulated members’ funds - 24 592,500
At 30 June 24.592,500 24,592 500

As at 30 June 2013, the Fund had unallecated members’ contributions of Ushs 24.6
billion that formed part of the reserve account As at 30 June 2007, the unallecated
members’ contributions amounted to Ushs 360 billion and through the measures
taken by management to identify the respective members to whom the amounis
belonged, the unallocated amounts gradually reduced over the years to Ushs 24.6
billion as at 30 June 2012. The directors believe that, in addition to putiing in place
measures to curtail the growth of the unatiocated amounts, the Fund had aexhausted
all possible measures to identify the members fo whom these amounts belonged and
accordingly resolved to transfer the Ushs 24.6 billion to the reserve account in
accordance with Section 36 {1) {b) of the NSSF Act. In the event that a member ofthe
Fund presents adequate documentation to prove that there are contributions that
should have been credited to thair account, NSSF will fransfer the contributions from
the reserve account to the members’ account following approval by the Minister of
Finance as stipulated in Section 36 (2) of the NSSF Act.
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34,

RELATED PARTY DISCIOSURES

3 NATIONAL. SOGIAL SECURITY FUND :
l' NOTES TO THE FINANC!AL STATEMENTS {CO NTINUED}
] 3;_’.. NET CASH USED IN OPERATING ACTIVITIES 2013 2012
' ; Ushs 000 Ushs 060
: Surplus before fax 412916475 276,299,605
' Depreciation of property and equipment 1,039,965 5,495,845
Loss/{Gain) on disposal of property and equipment 56,170 {1,346,305)
Gain on disposal of invesiment properties - (511,500)
' Amoriization of intangible assets 1,666,223 1,497,087
Prepaid operating land lease amortization - 14,576
Share of results from associates (7,259,438) {6,714,531)
l Provision for capital work-in-progress - 9,136
" Unrealised forsign exchange (gains)/losses on equity
’ investments ) (617,658) 18,696,910
Fair value gains on invesiment properties - (57,951,140}
Fair value (gain}ioss on equity investments (33,725.285) 17.078.324
374,976,452 252,568,007
Dacrease in inventories 3,086 8,079
Decrease/(Increase) in frade and other rece:vables 6,347,002 {8.841,438)
Decrease in other payables and provisions (29,848,465) {(4,272,721)
(Increase)/Decrease in deposits with commercial
banks due after 3 months ' {154,495,153) 249,341,302
Increase in investments in securities held-te-maturity
maturing after 3 months {593,448324) (716,101,692}
Income tax (withholding tax) paid (69.816,573) {37.462,230)
Net cash flows used in operating activities {466,081,095) (264,760,693)

The following table provides the total amount of transactions that have been entered into
with related parties. For information regarding the outstanding balances at 30 June 2013

and 2012, refer to Note 13, 14 and 17:

Amounts
Placements/ owed by
Maturities/Re Interest Related
bal/b fwd ceipts accrued parties
Ushs 000 Ushs 000 Ushs 000 Ushs 000

Housing Finance Bank
- Cash balances 2013 - - - 119,085
: 2012 - - - 772,805
© - Fixed deposits 2013 25,000000 (29,500,000) 1,983,023 39,122,699
; 2012 29,500,000 (72,500,000) 2,408,779 31,908,779
- Corporate bonds 2013 10,000,000 - 612,207 10,812,207
: 2012 10,000,000 - 602,301 10,602,301
¢ -Loans & advances 2013 40,666,666 (2,428,965) 14,9656 40,727,357
2012 43,500,000 (1,500,000) 15,733 43,560,238

. Payments/

Ry s e ey — - o e ———
-z -




e —————— e e e e e S

NATIONAL SOCIAL SECURITY FUND =~ -
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL $TATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

P34

t.

RELATED PARTIES (CONTINUED)
: Amounts
owed by
. Placements/P  Maturities/Re Interest Related
ayments ceipts accryed parties
Ushs 000 Ushs 600  Ushs 000 Ushs 000

Uganda Clays Limited ‘

Loan 2013 - {99,649) 498,013 15,219,768
2012 10,286,552 2,030,220 12,316,772

Govemment of Uganda

Trehsury bills 2013 - - - -
2012 - {26,210,174) - -

Government Bonds 2013 1,816819639 (184465056} 104,292,871 1,922,181,862
2012 1,275,008,036 (14,275,262) 59,591,632 1,334,690,058

Withholding tax paid 2013 69,616,673 - - -
2012 37,462,230 - - -

Key management

personnel

Advances 2013 849,713 (96,107) - 849,713
2012 1,010,715 {70,202) - 1,010,715

a} Housing Finance Bank
The Fund has a 50% shareholding i Housing Finance Bank.

Bank balances - The bank balances relate to balances on the current accounts held by NSSF
in Housing Finance Bank Limited. These accounts are non-interest bearing.

Fixed deposits - The Fund has fixed deposit placements with the bank maturing within a
period of 365 day and with interest rates ranging from 16.5% to 21.2%.

Corporate bond - The corporate bond is for a peried of 10 years with an interest rate of 13.5%
and matures on 12 January 2018, :

Loans - Loans to Housing Finance Bank are at interest rates ranging between 12.5% and
15.5%. Refer to Note 19 for the terms and conditions of the facilities.

b) Uganda Clays Limited

The Fund has a 32.5% shareholdingin Uganda Clays Limited, Refer fo Note 19 for the terms
and conditions of the facilities. _ ,

c) Govemment of Uganda ‘
The Government has 100% control in the Fund. Other significant refated party transéctior.s
with the Government of Uganda include payment of taxes (Pay as-You-Eam (PAYE), WAT

and withholding tax on local supplies and professional services), ulility costs and rentai
income earned from government ministries that occupy the Fund's proparties. - Co
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NATICNAL SOCIAL SECURITY FUND

34.

35.

by

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS {CONTINUED)

RELATED PARTIES (CONTINUED)
d} Terms and conditions

Cther than the terrmns disclosed above, there have been no guaraniees provided or
received for any of the above related party receivables. For the year ended 30 June 2013,
the Fund has recorded an impaimment of receivables relating to amounts owed by related
parties of Ushs 15.22 million (2011: Nil). This assessment is undertaken each financial
year through examining the financial position of the related party and the market in which
the related party operates.

e) Compensation for key management personnel and directors emoluments
' L. 2013 2012
Ushs 000  Ushs 000
Non-executive directors’ emoluments:

Salaries and allowances 394,803 275350

Key management remuneration: |
Salaries and allowances 3,071,467 2,701,168
Terminal benefits 335,112 - 525429
3801382 3,501,947

The amounts disclosed above are the amounts recognised as an expense during the
reporting period related to key management personnel and directors.

CONTINGENT LIABILTIES

The Fund is a litigant in other various cases for breach of contract arising in the nomal
cowrse of business. The directors are of the view that the Fund has high chances of
success against the plaintiffs and none of the cases individualy or in aggregate would
have a significant impact on the Fund’s operation. The directors are canfident that the
Fund shall receive favourable ruling from the outstanding cases. Information on these
cases has not been disclosed as the directors consider that the disclosure of the
information could prejudice the Fund’s position. The cases in which the Fund Is 2 litigart
majorly relate to breach of contracts that the Fund entered into and members suing for
their unseitied benefit claims.

The Fund received a notice of assessment for corporation tax from Uganda Revenue
Authority (URA) amounting o Ushs 49.7 billion. The Fund objected to the assessment on
the grounds that URA's tax computations contained expenses that were wrongly
disallowed. The Fund, through its tax consultants formally responded to the issues raised
by URA. As at the date of this report, URA had not responded to the Fund's submissian.
No provision has therefore been made in the financial statements because in the apinion
of the directors, this liability is unlikely to materialise.
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NAT!ONAL SOCIAL SECURITY FUND .
: NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

; 36.

37.

NSIMBE HOLDlNGS LIMITED

Thmugh its wholly owned subsidiary, Premier Developments Limited, the Fund entered
into a joint venture arrangement with Mugoya Estates Limited in which the latter held a
51% share of the joint venture entity, Nsimbe Holdings Limited. Subsequent to the
formation, the Fund’s investment in Nsimbe Holdings Limited was investigated by the
Inspector General of Government (IGG) whe declared the Fund’s investment illegal and
one done in bad faith. As a result of this investigation, Nsimbe Holdings Limited
challenged the IGG’s findings in the Constitutional Court. The Constituional Court

" subsequently declared the agreement leading to the formation of Nsimbe Holdings

Limited unconstitutional and therefore the company did not exist in law i.e. a non-entity
which cannot sue or be sued. The Board of Directors of the Fund resolved that the joint
venture is formally liquidated and both parties share the jbint venture assets in proportion
to their shareholding. Accordingly, the Fund entered into negotiations with Eng. James
Isabirye, the proprietor of Mugoya Estates Limited but the negotiations had collapsed by
the time of issuing these financial statements. The Fund intends to take legal action to
recover its investment. The recoverability of this amount can’t be determined at this time,
and therefore the investment remains fully impaired in these financial statements.

USE OF ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS

The preperation of financial statemants in conformity with International Financial Reporting
Standards requires management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the application of policies and reported amounts of assets and liabifities, and
disclosure of cantingent assets and liabiliies at the date of the financial statements and
reported amounts of revenues and expenses during the reporting peried.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions
to accounting estimates are recognized in the period in which the estimates are revised
and in any future periods affected. The estimates and associated assumption are based
on historical experiences, the results of which fonm the basis of making the judgments
about the carrying values and liabilities that are not readily apparent from cother sources.
Actual resulis ultimately may differ from these estimates.

The Fund makes estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets
and liabilities within the next financial year. Estimates and judgements are continualy
evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors, including expeciations
of future events that are believed b be reasonable under the circumstances.

Management identifies all significant accounting policies  and those that involve high
judgement and in particular the significant areas of estimation and uncertainty in applying
accounting policies that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognized in the
financial statements are:

{} Impairment - The Fund makes estimates and assumptions that could affect the
reported amounts of assets within the next financial year. Estimates and judgements
are continually evaluated and are based on historical experience and other factors,
including expectations of future events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances. The Fund regulardy reviews its assels and makes judgements in
determining whether an impaiment loss should be recognized in respect of observable
data that may impact on future estimated Sash flows. The methodology and
assumptions used for astimating both the amount and timing of future cash flows are
reviewad regularly to reduce any differences between loss estimates and actual loss
expearience.
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NATIONAL SOCIAL SECURITY FUND S
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

I37’ USE OF ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS (CONTINUED)

38.

(ii) Determining fair values - The detemination of fair value for financial assets and
liabiliies for which there is no observable market price requires the use of valuation
techniques. For financial instruments that trade infrequently and have little price
transparency, fair value is less objective, and requires varying degrees of judgement
depending on liquidity, concentration, uncertainty of market factors, pricing
assumptions and other risks affecting the specific instrument.

(i) Provisions and conlingencies - A provision is recognized If as a result of past events,
the Fund has a present legal or constructive obligation that can be estimated refiably,
and it Is probable that an outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle the
obligation. For the provisions included inthe financial statements see note 30.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

Introduction and cverview

The Fund has exposure to the following risks from its use of financial instruments:
e Marketrisk,
+ Ligquidity risk, and
+ Creditrisk.

included below is information about the Fund’s exposure to each of the above risks, the
Fund’s objectives, policies and processes for measuring and managing the risks and the
Fund's management of capital,

Risk management frahiework'

The Fund's Board of Directors has overall responsibility for the establishment and
oversight of the Fund’s risk management framewaork. The board has established an Audit
and Risk Committee, and the Risk Department, which are responsible for developing and
monitoring the risk management policies in their specified areas. All board commitices
have both executive and non-executive members and report regularly to the Board of
Directors on their activities.

The Fund's risk management policies are established to identify and analyse the risks
faced by the Fund, to set appropriate risk limits and controls, and to monitor risks and
adherence to limits. Risk management policies and systems are reviewed regularly to
reflect changes in market conditions, products and services offered. The Fund through its
training and management standards and procedures, aims to develop a disciplined and
constructive control environment, in which all employees understand their roles and
obligations. ‘

The Fund's Audit and Risk Committee is responsible for monitoring compliance with the
Fund’s risk management policies and procedures, and for reviewing the adequacy of the
risk management framework in relation to the risks faced by the Fund. The Audit and

- Risk Commitiee is assisted in these functions by Intemal Audit. nternal Audit undertakes.
* both regular and ad hog reviews of risk management controls an- procedures, the resulis

of which are reported to the Audit and Risk Commitiee.
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38.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT'D)
{a) Market risk
Market risk is the risk that changes in market prices, such as interest rate and foreign

exchange rates will affect the Fund's income or the value of its holdings of financial
instruments, The objective of market risk management is to manage and contro! market

risk exposures within the acceptable parameters, while oplimising the return on risk,

‘Managemeant of market risks

Market risk arises from a decrease in the market value of a portfolic of financial
instruments caused by adverse movements in {he market variables such as equity, bonds
and commodity prices, currency exchange rates and interest rates.

The Board grants authorilty to take on market risk exposure to the Management
Investment Committee {MIC). This committee manages this risk through the guidelines
set out in the Fund’s investment policy.

Currency risk

The Fund is exposed to currency risk through transactions in foreign currencies. The
Fund transactional exposures give rise to foreign eurrency gains and losses that are
recognised in {he statement of comprehensive income. In respect of monetary assets and
liabiities in foreign currencies, the Fund ensures that iis net exposure is kept o an
acceptable level by matching foreign currency assets to liabilities when considered
apprapriaie, Monitoring of foreign currency fluctuations is done through the Audit and
Risk Committee.

The Fund operates wholly within Uganda and its assels and liabilities are reported in
Uganda shillings, although it maintains some of its assets and trades with banks in foreign
currencies. The Fund held no significant foreign cumency exposure as at 30 June as
shown below:

R i LT A = Vi
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NATIONAL SOCIAL SECURITY FUND

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONT]NUED)

38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT’D)

Gurrency risk {continued}

The Fund had the following significant currency positions as at 30 June 2013. Ali balances are

in Ushs 00Q.

Assets
Cash and bank balances

Deposits with commercial
banks

Equity securities held-for-
tfrading t

Trade and other receivables

Investments in securities held-
to-maturity

Equity investments at fair
value through profit or loss

Loans and advances
Inventories

Non-current assets hald for
sale

Investments in Associates
Capital work-in-progress
Investment properties
Intangible assets
Property and equipment
Total Assets

Liahilities

Withholding tax payable
Other payables
Provisions for litigation

Members’ Funds and
Reserves

Accumulated members’ funds

Reserve accounts
Accumulated surplus

Total Members’ fund,
reserves & liabilities
Currency gap

As at 30 June 2013

a ey - — - -

usD Kshs Ushs Total
322137 2,411,929 12,642,605 15,376,671

42,017,631 - 689,936,464 731 854,095

- 29219318 6,094,008 . 35,313,327

- - 16,244 417 16,244,417

- 154,441,351 1,835,684,350 1,990,125,710

- 48818,508 105,033,072 153,851,580

- - 45,299537 45,299 537

- - 4,626 7,602

- - 256,290 256,290

- - 74,720,713 74,720,713

- - 235,676,201 235,676,401

- - 169,905,326 169,905,326

- - 8,414 853 8,414,853

- o - 4,026,152 4026,152

42.339,768 234,891,107 3,203,938,823 3,481,169,698

- - 901,895 901,895

143,848 - 20,054,023 20,197,871

9,238,702 - - 9,239,702

9,383,550 - 20,955918 30,339,468

- - 3322576227 3,322576,227

- - 38,197,834 38,197,834

- - 90,056,169 90,056,168

- - 3,450,830,230 3,450,830,230

9,383,550 . - 3,471 ,?86,148_ 3,481,169,698

32956218 234,891,107 _ (267,847.325) -
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38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT'D)

Currengy risk {continued)

FUND

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

B e e e el

The Fund had the following significant currency positions as at 30 June 2012. Al balances are

in Ushs 000.

Assets

Cash and bank balances

Deposits with commercial
banks

Investment in securifies held-
for-trading :

Trade and other receivables

Investments In securities held-
to-maturity

Equity investments at fair value
through profit or loss

~Loans and advances
Inveniories
Prepaid operating lease
Invesiments in Associales
Cther investments
Investment properties
Intangible assets
Property and equipment
Total Assets

Liabilities

Withhelding iax payable
Other payables
Provisions for litigation

Members’ Funds and
Reserves

Accumulated members’ funds
Reserve account
Accumulated surplus

Total Members’ fund,
reserves & liabilities

Surrency gap
As at 30 June 2012

T N G EE e e

usp Kshs Ushs Total
4,625 430 - 12,788,580 17,414,010
66,685,549 - 619,465,774 686,151,323
b t
- 16,461,036 4,409,393 20,870,429 .
. - 22 592,219 22,592,219
- - 1,386,294,688 1,386,204,688 '
- 25095916 53,195,771 78,291,687
- - 62,044,823 62,044,823 '
. . 7,692 7,692
- - 256,290 . 256,290
- - 68,237,191 68,237,191 l
- . 10,300 10,300
. - 385,582,588 385,562,588 .
- - 10,068,810 10,068,810
- - 5,142,081 5,142,081
71,310,979 41,556,952 2,630,096,200 2,742,964,131 '
- - 901,805 901,895 .
. - - 17,353,026 17,353,026
41,580,470 - - 41,590,470 l
41,590,470 - 18,254,921 59,845,391
- - 2,621,222,866 2,621,222,866
- - 34,328,993 34,328,003 l
- - 27,566,881 27,566,881
- - 2,683,118,740 2,683,118,740
41,590,472 - _2,701,373,661 2,742.984,131 I
(29,720,507) (41,556,952) 71,277,464 '
66 '
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. NATIONAL SOCIAL SECURITY FUND

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT'D)
Currency risk (continue&)

The table below indicates the currencies to which the Fund had significant exposure at 30 June
onh its nontrading monetary assets and liabiities and its forecast cash flows. The analysis
calculates the effect of a reasonably possible movement of the currency rate against the LS
Dollar and Kenya Shiling, with all other variables held constant, on the statement of
comprehensive income {due to the fair value of currency sensifive non-trading monetary assels
and liabiliies). A negative amount in the table reflects a potential net reduction in the statement
of comprehensive income and equity, while a positive amount reflects a net poteniial increase,
An equivalent decrease in each of the below currencies against the US Dollar and Kenya
Shilling would have resuited in an equivalent but opposite impact.

Currency Change in Effect on profif Change in Effect on profit
currency rate in before tax currency rate before tax

% in % '
2013 2013 2012 2012
Ushs 000 Ushs '0D0
usD +-10% +/-4,216,320 +-10% +-2,972,051
KES +5% +5% +/-1,254,796

+-11,282,570

The following exchange rates applied during the year:

Average rate Reporting date spot rate

2013 2012 2013 2012

Ushs Ushs Ushs Ushs
Kenya KES 31.28 20 31.28 30
USA ushD 260120 2450 2,638.06 2512
inferest rate rfsk

In broad terms, interest rate risk is the risk that concerns the sensitivity of the Fund's financial
performance to changes in interest rates. The Fund’s operations are subject to the risk of
interest rate fluctuations to the extent that interest earning assets and interest bearing liabiliies
mature or re-price at different imes or in differing amounts. Risk management adlivities are
aimed at optimizing net interest income, given market interest rates levels consistent with the
Fund’s business strategies. In order to minimize interest risk, the Fund has a policy whereby
the approved investment commitments are matched to member’s funds.

Falr value and cash flow sensitivity analysis

The Fund does not acocount for any fixed rate or variable rate financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss. Therefore a change in interest rate af the statement of financial posut:on
date will not affect surplus or deficit

The financial assels held at variable rate relate to the corporate bonds for East African
Development Bank (EADB). These balances are not significant when compared with the total
financial assets of the Fund as at year end, hence a change of 1 basis point in the interesl rate
for these instruments would have an msngnrr icant effect on the statement of comprehensive
income. The table below summarizes the exposura o interest rate risk. Included in the table are
the Fund's assets and liabilities at carrying amounts, categorized by the earlier of confractual
re-pricing datas ang the maturity dates. All balances are in Ushs 000,
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NATIONAL SOCIAL SECURITYFUND - -
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT'D)

Falr value versus carrying amounts :

The fair values of financial assets and liabilities together with the carrying value shown in
the statement of financial position are analysed as follows. The fair value of the financial
assets and Babilities approximates fo their respective carrying amounts:

30 June 2013 30 June 2012
Carryihg Fair Carrying Fair
amount " wvalue amount Value
Ushs "000 Ushs ‘000 Ushs ‘000 Ushs ‘000
Loans and advances 45,299,537 45,299,752 62,044,823 2,044,823
Investment securities 1,990,125,710  1,990,125,710 1,386,204,688  1,386,294,688
Equity investments at _
fair value through ‘
profit or loss 153,851,580 153,851,580 78,291,687 78,291,687
Cther investment - -1 | 10,300 10,300
Deposits due from A
commercial banks 731,954,005 . 686,151,323 686,151,323
Trade and other B TR,
receivables © 16,244 417 16,244,417 | ‘-'253;32,592,21 9 22,592,219
Cash and bank _ ' .
balances 15,376,671 15,37¢ 17,414,010 17,414,010
Investment securities SR
held for trading 36,313,326  “36,315326 20,870,429 20,870,429
i st
Other payables (20,197,67 ?‘ﬁ% (26197,871) (17,353,026)  (17,353,026)
2,067,567,4655u2,965:967,465 | | 2256316453  2,266,316,453
S,
. . £t g 09
Valuation hierarchyj;” o D
S P

e &

IFRS 7: Financial !nstrur?i‘"eijg?gmisclosures (“IFRS 77} requires a three fiered disclosure for
all financial assets and finakcial liabilities that are carried in the books of entiies at fair
value. This fair value disclosure is divided into three levels as follows:

o Level 1 quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or abilties
e.0. quoted equity securities. .

» Level 2 — inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are cbservable
for the asset or liabiity either directly (e.g. prices) or indirectly {e.g. derived from
prices). :

» Level 3 — inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market
data. These items are not Level 1 products and contain at least one significant input
parameter which could not be price tested from any of the methods described for
tevel 2 products. Examples are products where corvelation is a significant input
parameter and products where there is severe iiliquidity in the markets for a
prolonged period oftime, .
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NATIONAL SOCIAL SEGURITY FUND o
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
. . N

38. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT {CONT’D}

The table beldw shows the classificalion of financial instruments held at fair value into the .
valuation hierarchy set out below for the year ended 30 June:

2013 2012 -
Level 1 Level 1
Ushs 000 Ushs 000

Equity investments at fair valuae through profit or loss - 163,851,680 78,201,687
Investment securities held-for-trading 35313326 20,870,429

{b) Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Fund will encounter difficulty in meeting obligations on its
financial liabilities. It includes both the risk of being unable to fund assets at appropriate
maturities and rates and the risk of being unable to ligtidate an asset at a reasonable
price and in an appropriate time frame.

Management of liquidity risk iy
S . el

‘The Fund has access 1o a diverse funding base. Euinds are r;ised mainly from members’

contributions and reserves. The Fund continually'assesses liquidity risk by identifying and

monitoring changes in funding requir”é’_&?"%r‘ri%m%eeting. business goals and targets set in

terms of the overall Fund strategy. In afjditionithe Fund has a Management Investment

. Committee that meets on a regular. basis6 moriitor liquidity risk, review and approve
liquidity policies and procedures. ¥ g
- Lo

Ay
Y

Exposure to liquidity sﬂg‘&“

The table below ang|fées aggéts éfhg;l_ liabilities into relevant maturity groupings based on
the remaining pert 0 Junéi?01 3 to the contractual maturity date. Al balances are in
Ushs 000. 1
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. NATIONAL SOCIAL SECURITY FUND
NOTES T3 THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

38, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT’D}
(c; Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk of financial loss to the Fund if a customer or counterparty to a
financial instrument fails to meet its contractual obligations, and arises principally
from the Eund loans and advarces, trade and other receivables, deposits with
commercial banks and investmenis in government and corporate bonds. For risk
management reporing purpeses, the Fund considers all elements of credit risk
exposure such as individual obligator default risk, country and sector risk.

For risk management purposes, credit risk arising on trading securities is managed
) independently, but reported as a component of market'risk exposure. '

Management of credit risk

The Board of Directors has delegated responsibility for the management of credit risk
to its Management Investment Committee. The Investments Department is
responsible for oversight of the Fund's credit risk, including:

e Formulating credit policies, covering coliateral requirements and credit
assessments, risk grading and reporting. Documentary, legal procedures and
compliance with regulatory and statutory requirements is ‘done in consultation
with the Fund's Legal and Compliance Depariment.

» Establishing the authorisation structure for the approval and renewal of credit

" facilities. Authorisation fimits are allocated to the Management Investment
Committee. Larger facilities reguire approval by the Board of Directors as
appropriate. - :

» Reviewing compliance of investment mix with agreed exposure limits, including
those for selected industries, country risk and product types. The Fund's
Investment Committee is responsible for moniforing the credit quality of
investments and enswing that appropriate comective action is taken and
providing advice, guidance and specialist skills to business units to promote best
practice throughout the Fund in the management of creditrisk.

The investment Department is required to implement the Fund's credit policies and
procedures, with credit approval authorities delegated from the Fund's Board of
Directors. The Investment Department is responsible for the quality and performance
of the Fund's investment portiolio and for monitaring and controlling all credit risks in
the Fund’s porifolio, including those subject to board approval.

Regular audits of the Investiment Department and the Fund’s credit processes are
undertaken by the Internal Audit Department.

Exposure to credit risk

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure.
The maximum credit exposure as at the statement of financial position date was;
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NATIONAL SOCIAL SECURITY FUND _
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)

38, FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT'D)

Cash and bank balances
Deposits due from banks
Trade and other receivables

Investment securities held-to-maturity

Loans and advances .
) 3

The concentration of credit risk for loans at amortised costs as at the re

was:

DFCU Bank Limited: Loan for mortgage financing

Housing Finance Bank Limited

Uganda Clays Limited

Staff loans

The ageing of loans at amortized cost as at the statement of financial

was as follows:

" Not past due norimpaired
Past due 30-60 days
. Pastdue 31-120 days
Past due 120-360 days
“More than a year

As at the reporting date, there was no im

maturity investments.

The concentrations of credit risk for trade and ot

Note 2013 2012
' Ushs 000 Ushs 000
13 15,376,671 17,414,010
14 . 731,854,005 686,151,323
16 16,244,417 22,592,219
17 1,980,125,710 1 386,294, 688
19 45,289,752 62,044,823
2799.000,645 2174,497063
porling date
2013 2012
Ushs 000 Ushs 000
1,500,000 2,500,000
40,727,357 43,560,238
15,219,768 12,316,773
3.072.180 3,667.812
60,519,305 62,044,823
position date
30 June 2013 30 June 2012
Gross  Impairment Gross Impairment
Ushs 000 Ushs 000 Ushs 000 Ushs 000
45,299 537 - 62,044,823 -
15,219,768 (15,219,769) - -
60,519,305 (15,219,769) 62,044,_823 -

by the type of receivables was as follows:
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38,

‘LFINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (CONT'D)

2013 2012
Ushs 000 tUshs 000
Rent receivable 2,765,223 1,780,596
Contributions receivable 1,021,943 1,021,943
Withholding tax claim refund - 3,425,512
Staif debtors 838,930 952,733
Trade debtors 16,052,723 14,799,222
VAT recoverable 1,099,556 3,611,728
Prepayments 878,853 1,102,658
; 22851228 26894392
The ageing of trade and other receivables as at the reporting date was as follows:
30 June 2013 30 June 2012
Gross Impainment Gross Impairment
Ushs 000 Ushs 000 Ushs 000 Ushs 000
Neither past due nor impaired 11,965,923 - 16,297,951 -
Past due 0-30 days 26,6832 - 1,333,137 -
Past due 31-120 days 3,281 1,841 1,552,946 -
Past due more than 120 days 10,661,382  (6,411,170) 7.510,358  (4102,173)
22,657,228 (6,412,811} 26,694,392  (4,102,173)

Based on historical default rates, the Fund believes that no impaimnent allowance is
necessary in respect of trade receivables not past due by 90 days.

The allowance account in respect of trade and other receivables (as per Note 16} is used
to record impaimnent losses vnless the Fund is satisfied that no recovery of the ameunt
owing is possible. At that point the amount considered irrecoverable is wrilten off against

the financial asset directly.
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38.

39,

40.

41.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT {CONT'D)

FINANCIAL ASSETS

Held-for-trading
Investment securities held-for-trading

Financial assets atfair value through profit or loss
Equity investments

Held-to-maturity investments

Deposits with commercial banks
Investments in securities held-to-maturity

Financial assets atamortised cost
Cash and bank balances

Trade and other receivables )
Loans and advances

Total financial assets

FINANCIAL LIABILITIES

inanciat liabilities at amortised cost
Other payables

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Note
Cash and bank balances 13
Deposits due from banks within 3 months 14
Investments in securities held-to-maturity
maturing within 3 months 17
ESTABLISHMENT

d) Categories of financial assets and financial liabilities

2013
Ushs 000

35,313,327

153,851,580

731,854,095
1.990,125710

2012
Ushs 000

20,870,429

' £8.201,687

686,151,323
1.386,294.688

© 2,722.079.805 2,072446,011
15,376,671 17,414,010
16,244417 14,452,321
45,299 752 62,044,823
76,920,840 93,911,154

2,988,1656582 2265519281

5396917 €.375.107
2013 2012
Ushs 00¢ Ushs 000G
15,376,671 17,414,010
220,860570 329,552,951
1709,61 5,696 99,232 998
345852037 446,199,950

Tl’re Fund was established in Uganda under section 2 of the NSSF Act (Cap 222),

‘ .
SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

There were no wvents occurring after the veporting date which had an impact on the

financial posntlon or resulits of the Fund,




